VL

OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
MARCH / APRIL BOARD MEETING
FRIDAY, APRIL 5, 2024

Meeting Called to Order by Chairperson Vernon D. Burns at 5:00 PM.
Letters and Communications to the Board.
Approval of Board Minutes:

- February 8, 2024 Finance Committee Meeting
- February 8, 2024 Board Meeting

- February 29, 2024 Childcare Initiative Meeting
- February 29, 2024 Special Board Meeting

Reports

Presentations and Reports:

1. Committee Reports
a) Finance Committee Report

2. Reports:
a) Income/Expense Report
b) Bridge Traffic Report
c) Airport Activity Report
d) Port Activity Report
e) Economic Development Report, Including Building Occupancy

Unfinished Business.
Business ltems.

A. General Administration
1. Approval of Credit Card Policy.
2. Approval of Use of NYS Travel Manual.
3. Renewal of Existing Line of Credit with Tompkins Community Bank.
4. Approval of HVAC Service Agreement.

B. Ogdensburg-Prescott International Bridge
1. Approval of Lease Supplement No. 1 with Mack Global Design, Inc.
2. Approval of Lease Supplement No. 4 with Glenda Jones.

C. Commerce Park

1. Approval of Lease Supplement No. 12 with T-Base Communications USA, Inc.
2. Approval of Lease Agreement with West End Management dba The Stock.

Ticker Company.
3. Approval of Lease Supplement No. 2 with LiveFast Motors, LLC.

D. Ogdensburg International Airport
1. Approval of T-Hangar Lease Agreement with Frank Richardson.







2. Approval of T-Hangar Lease Agreement with Keith Weston.
3. Approval of T-Hangar Lease Agreement with Pete Bogardus.
4. Approval of T-Hangar Lease Agreement with Frank Richardson.

E. Port of Ogdensburg
1. Approval of Handling and Storage Agreement with Morton Salt, Inc.
2. Port Dock Expansion-Approval of Work Order No. 24-01 with FVD Engineering
Services, S.C.

F. New York & Ogdensburg Railroad
1. None.

G. Border Station
1. None.

H. Other Such Matters
1. Approval of Contract with C&S Companies.

VIl.  Concluding Comments from Citizens, Board Members, and/or Authority Staff.

VIII. Next Meeting Dates:

May 9, 2024 Thursday  5:00 PM (Proposed)
June 13, 2024 Thursday  5:00 PM (Proposed)
July 11, 2024 Thursday  5:00 PM (Proposed)
August 8, 2024 Thursday  5:00 PM (Proposed)
September 12, 2024 Thursday  5:00 PM (Proposed)
October 10, 2024 Thursday  5:00 PM (Proposed)
November 14, 2024 Thursday  5:00 PM (Proposed)
December 12, 2024 Thursday  5:00 PM (Proposed)

IX.  Adjournment
Dated: April 1, 2024

‘ _/C-‘.i_ﬁllﬁg.f?’éiff'ﬁ-{

Steven J. Lawrence
Executive Director

Board of Directors: Staff: Press:

Mr. Vernon D. “Sam” Burns, Chairperson Mr. Steven J. Lawrence, Executive Director Mr. Andy Gardner, WDT

Ms. Megan J. M. Whitton, Vice Chair Ms. Patricia A. Nisco, CFO Ms. Monica Sandreczki, North. Country Public Radio
Mr. Christopher B. T. Coffin, Treasurer Mr. Anthony Adamczyk, Director of Economic Development ~ Ms. Dawn Merz, Radio Station YES FM

Mr. David King, Secretary Mr. James D. Chase, Director of Operations WWNY TV-7

Ms. Jennifer Quirk-Pickman, Member Mr. Charlie Garrelts, Airport Manager Mr. Jimmy Lawton, North Country Now

Ms. Nicole Terminelli, Member Mr. Jim Leven, Community Broadcasters

Ms. Toni Kennedy, Member






OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 8, 2024

A meeting of the Finance Committee of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority was held in

the boardroom of the Administration Building on Thursday, February 8, 2024 at 4:30 PM.

The following were present:

David D. King, Committee Chair

Nicole Terminelli, Member

Vernon D. Burns, Board Chair

Steven J. Lawrence, Executive Director

Patricia A. Nisco, Chief Financial Officer

Anthony Adamczyk, Director of Economic Development
James D. Chase, Director of Operations

Charlie Garrelts, Airport Manager

ABSENT:

Committee Chair, David D. King, called the meeting to order at 4:30 PM.

I Business ltems

a. December 2023 Financials

Chief Financial Officer, Patricia A. Nisco, started with the Statement of Financial
Position and reported that the Regular Accounts Receivable is at $183,599. 97% of
this Accounts Receivable is either current or 1-30 days. AEAS includes both
Contour and DOT reimbursements. $406,000 was reimbursed on 2/2/24, $377,000
was submitted on 1/31/24. As of this afternoon, the website shows these
reimbursements are still pending approval. For the airline, there are invoices 1-30,
and 31-60 days overdue. Fixed assets have not changed. However, within the next
few months, the generator that will close out the CRISI Grant will be added. Under
Liabilities, Regular Accounts Payable is at $487,171. Accounts Payable —
AEAS/Contour is at $337,727. NYS Retirement was posted in December; $96,000
has been paid toward the total. The rest will be paid over time and interest will be

incurred if it isn’t paid all at once. As of the end of December, All Project A/P is at



$968,903. When reimbursements are received, they will be turned around and paid
back out. Working on the Cash Flow report, to keep it positive, the OBPA has come
to a point where it can pay payroll, benefits, insurance, and debt.

Chief Financial Officer, Patricia A. Nisco, moved on to the Budget to Actual and
reported that the fuel sales are off for the 2023-2024 budget, but the actuals are on
track to defend the reduction for 2024-2025. AEAS income has now gone negative,
the additional flights from the summer are now giving way to the negative winter
weather that is hindering the flights now. Under the Industrial Park, in prior years the
utilities income was added, when in fact it is used to reduce the utility bill. All tenants
are right on target, the issue has been solved. Terminal income is up due to having
one more salt vessel this year, and the unanticipated transformer activity. One issue
she and Executive Director, Steven J. Lawrence, spoke about: as salt throughput is
so weather dependent, there is no assumption of having salt on the dock after March
31st. It is assumed that all gone will be gone. Any salt left on the dock will help by
adding to storage income. Under Expenses, under Salary, most are all over due to
the vacation buy out/buy backs. Those should’ve been charged to benefits, which
will be done next month. While Bridge Maintenance expenses are being kept in
check, the boiler repairs are the major reason for reduction in this line. Almost all
departmental General Expenses are over for the month of December due to
January’s Commercial Insurance being paid in December. The Maintenance and
General Expenses for the Airport are about what they have been. The runway
striping, the emergency AWOS, the new software package, and the recruitment
expense for the new airport manager will continue to follow through. The Interest
Expense for the Airport is in the negative. That is the interest for the line of credit for
the revitalization project. The line of credit hasn't been fully secured, so it just isn’t
being used. Under the Marine Terminal, the Employee Benefits are over budget due

to the unemployment is going to ILA Members for not working at the Port. Port



Maintenance Expenses are as they were. The unanticipated scale repair, the
loader/dozer, and the repairs to the CAT loader have been the primary reasons for
the overage. There is a line of credit intended for the port wall dock expansion, but it
has not yet been used resulting in an under-budget expense. The Border Station
expenses are being kept separate to assist with the Attorney General's request to
unwind the Border Station and re-dissolve it.

- Chief Financial Officer, Patricia A. Nisco, moved on to the Cash Flow for December
2023 — May 2024. Under the OBPA Grant Portion & Capital Expense: these figures
will start going up with Bid Package #2, and the construction of the Great Room and
renovations of the Airport. Turnaround time is about 40 days so there may be a lag
in when reimbursement income is shown. In April and May, Salary and Benefits are
going up with mandated salary increases on April 1st. Everything else is remaining
relatively constant.

Il. Other Such Matters

None.
On a motion by Board Chair, Vernon D. Burns, seconded by Nicole Terminelli, the Finance

Committee Meeting adjourned at 4:43 PM.

David D. King
Finance Committee Chairperson






OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
BOARD MEETING
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 8, 2024

The Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority was held in
the Board Room of the Administration Building on Thursday, February 8, 2024 at 5:00 PM.
The following were present:
Vernon D. Burns, Chairperson
David D. King, Secretary, Member
Nicole Terminelli, Assistant Secretary, Member
Jennifer Quirk-Pickman, Member
Toni Kennedy, Member
ALSO: Jennifer Granzow, Counsel
Jillian Brodock, Counsel
Steven J. Lawrence, Executive Director
Patricia A. Nisco, Chief Financial Officer
Anthony Adamczyk, Director of Economic Development
James D. Chase, Director of Operations
Charlie Garrelts, Airport Manager

ABSENT: Megan J. M. Whitton, Vice-Chairperson

. Vernon D. Burns, Board Chair, called the meeting to order at 5:06 PM.

Il. Letters and Communications to the Board.
Executive Director, Steven J. Lawrence, stated there were some letters shared by e-mail
from the new Mayor of the City of Ogdensburg. He wanted to bring them to the Board'’s
attention.
Board Chair, Vernon D. Burns, stated there was something else the Board should be made
-aware of. Last night at the Jefferson-Lewis-St. Lawrence County Labor Council Meeting,
Mr. Lawrence did a presentation on behalf of the Bridge and Port Authority that was very
well done and very well received. Mr. Burns thanked Mr. Lawrence.

M. Approval of Meeting Minutes.

January 10, 2024 Childcare Initiative Committee Meeting Minutes
January 11, 2024 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes

January 11, 2024 Annual Board Meeting Minutes

January 11, 2024 OBA Annual Board Meeting Minutes



- January 11, 2024 OBSI Annual Board Meeting Minutes

On a motion made by Jennifer Quirk-Pickman, and seconded by Toni Kennedy, all of the

meeting minutes were approved by voice vote.

V. Presentations and Reports

1. Committee Reports

a) Finance Committee

David D. King, Finance Committee Chair, stated the Finance Committee had a
meeting before the Board meeting, and turned it over to Chief Financial Officer,
Patricia A. Nisco.

Chief Financial Officer, Patricia A. Nisco, started with the Statement of Financial
Position, and reported that the Regular Accounts Receivable is at $183,599.
97% of that A/R is either current or 1-30 days; the OBPA is staying well on top of
accounts receivable. Accounts Receivable AEAS, there are two months worth of
reimbursements from USDOT. One was reimbursed on 2/2/24, and the other one
was submitted on 1/31/24. As of this morning, the submission was still pending
approval. Until the pending approval isn't showing, the reimbursement has not
gone through to the payment processing. The airline has Accounts Receivable
that is 1-30 days or 31-60 days overdue. Fixed Assets have not changed over
the last couple of months. The only thing on the horizon to be added to the Fixed
Assets is the generator to finish out the CRISI Grant. Regular Accounts Payable
is at $487,171. Accounts Payable - AEAS/Contour is at one month at $337,727.
The retirement invoice was posted in December and $96,000 has been paid.
Interest will be incurred as the full amount is not being paid by the deadline. All
Project Accounts Payable is at $968,903. At the current time, there is difficulty in
paying A/P; payroll, benefits, and debt are being paid consistently. Regular

Accounts Payable is lagging.



Chief Financial Officer, Patricia A. Nisco, moved on to the Budget to Actual, and
reported that it was known that fuel sales were budgeted too high. The actuals
that are seen on the report are on track to defend the reduction for the budget in
airport fuel sales for 2024 — 2025. The Utility Income used to be added to the
Rent Income; however, the Utility Income actually goes to offset the Ultility
Expense. She and the Director of Economic Development have discussed this.
Due to the fact that this is showing up as a reduction to expense and not as
income, it reflects a negative income the Industrial Park. However, everything
that was budgeted for the tenants, is right where it needs to be. There is no real
deficit to the Industrial Park. There was one more salt vessel than anticipated
and the transformer activity helped bring the Marine Terminal above budget. She
and Executive Director discussed, there is no assumption that there is any salt
left on the dock come March 31%t. No salt is budgeted for the fiscal year except
any new salt that is anticipated. The salary expense for aimost every
department is over budget for the month of December due to the vacation buy
outs/buy backs being paid out. Those shouldn’t be in salary; they should be in
employee benefits, and will be reclassed next month. General expenses in
almost every category are over budget for the month. The Commercial
Insurance bill for January was paid in December to ensure timely payment during
the holidays. Overall, the OBPA is not incurring a lot of additional expense, but
this means that expenses are being deferred. The Border Station expenses are
being kept separate to assist with the Attorney General's request to unwind the
Border Station and re-dissolve it.

Chief Financial Officer, Patricia A. Nisco, moved on to the Cash Flow for
December 2023 — May 2024, and reported that it is pretty much what it was
expected to be. Under the Expenses, the OBPA Grant Portion & Capital

Expense is going up significantly. Bid Package #2 for the construction of the



Airport Terminal and Great Room is now in sight, so the numbers are going up.
Salary, Payroll, and Benefits are going up as of April due to the CBA mandated
increase in wages and benefits.

Board Chair, Vernon D. Burns, stated that there is nothing in these figures that
was not anticipated and has not been talked about for the past year. The border/
bridge could not be closed down during COVID as there was still a meaningful
amount of commercial truck traffic, but there was a significant loss of revenue
due to the inability of automobile traffic. How does the Authority make up $5M in
lost revenue. It's not going to happen. Some has bounced back a little, but not
100%. The numbers show that bridge traffic is improving. Not all bills are being
paid as soon as they come due, unfortunately. As an ongoing Authority, moving

ahead with its mission, doing the best it can.

2. Reports

a) Bridge Traffic Report

Executive Director, Steven J. Lawrence, reported that even though the numbers
are down, percentage-wise for January, 85% of pre-COVID ftraffic is encouraging.
It was anticipated that the numbers would be running at 20% below pre-COVID
through the whole budget. Anything above that, budget-wise, is encouraging.

Overall revenue was down from the normal year, but up $3,500 over last year.

b) Airport Activity Report

Airport Manager, Charlie Garrelts, reported that for the month of January, 30
flights were completed with 258 passenger enplanements resulting in a 29%
flight load. Flight completion rate was at 60% with on time performance at 68%.
A lot of the flight issues were due to mechanical problems. When something
happens and there aren't any spare parts, the plane sits on the ground until parts

arrive.



- Airport Manager, Charlie Garrelts, reported that the OBPA is heavily involved
with the USDOT regarding the new upcoming EAS bids. All bidders are
welcome; increased interest can only benefit this community. USDOT stated that
it will be 30 — 60 days before the request for proposals will be sent out. Then, a
month for them to get the bids, two to three weeks for review, and then there will
be time for the community’s comments. Then, back to final approval. It is
anticipated that awarding the new EAS carrier will happen in May or June.

- Airport Manager, Charlie Garrelts, reported that there is a public announcement
that Sky West has acquired a 25% stake in Contour. The main purpose is to
supply Contour with the CRJ aircraft. Sky West is one of the largest operators of
the CRJ aircrafts in the world with 150 of them. Sky West is considering leasing
around 50 to Contour. Contour would use those to their advantage to solve
some of the operational issues they currently have.

Executive Director, Steven J. Lawrence, asked if this would improve Contour's
performance at Ogdensburg International Airport. Airport Manager, Charlie
Garrelts, confirmed that yes, it would. Pumping airplanes into the fleet would
solve the problem of aircraft sitting on the ground waiting for service.

- Executive Director, Steven J. Lawrence, clarified that it is Sky West’s partnership
with Contour to supply aircraft to Contour. He doesn’t want the public to
misinterpret; SkyWest is not returning as a carrier.

- Board Chair, Vernon D. Burns, asked if the timeline for considering bids for a
new airline service could be shortened. Airport Manager, Charlie Garrelts, did
state that it could be shortened based upon bidder interest.

c) Port Activity Report

- Director of Operations, James D. Chase, reported that for January salt started

satisfactorily, but ended on a high note. 24,295 tons of regular highway salt and

6,492 tons of the treated salt went out. January 31t was a 2,600-ton day. That



was the largest day he can remember. He thanked everyone involved: the
truckers, loaders and operators.

Board Chair, Vernon D. Burns, asked if there has been discussion about the
amount of treated salt being used on treated highway inside and outside of the
Adirondack Park. Director of Operations, James D. Chase, said officially no, but
stated there at least a dozen outside of the park that have hopped on board with
treated salt. He also reported that for the month of January, five rail cars were
received. All five rail cars had corn gluten meal on them, totaling almost 500
tons.

Director of Operations, James D. Chase, reported that there was nothing too
pressing as far as Ag at the port, but just received some more pellet cars
Inventory was running low on pellets, so that was good to see.

Director of Operations, James D. Chase, reported that the Smart Path
Transformer Project has been completed. The last 60 pieces left at the end of
January. This was a first for the Director of Operations, and he feels the process
went quite well. The customers were happy. They flew in from Spain to be
involved with the project. Director of Operations, James D. Chase, thanked the
local DOT, the City of Ogdensburg, the telecommunication companies, National
Grid, local ILA members, and St. Lawrence County.

Finance Committee Chair, David D. King, asked about the upright grain bins, if
there had been any inquiries about their use. Director of Operations, James D.
Chase, confirmed that last winter was the last time anyone had inquired. Board
Chair, Vernon D. Burns, stated maybe working with Adam to get those to working
order would be useful. Finance Committee Chair, David D. King, stated the yield
for corn is high and there’'s no where to put it. Executive Director, Steven J.
Lawrence, estimated it would take a quarter of million to $300,000 to get them in

working order.



d) Economic Development Report, Including Building Occupancy
- Director of Economic Development, Anthony Adamczyk, reported that the

Building Occupancy Report shows that building occupancy is remaining

consistent. A current tenant’s expansion plans are taking longer than expected,

but nothing to cause alarm.

- Director of Economic Development, Anthony Adamczyk, reported a few

highlights from January

> A great meeting was had with the Deputy Senior Commercial Officer for U.S.
Commercial service who is based in the U.S. Embassy in Ottawa. Another
meeting is scheduled for next Wednesday to discuss further with their team a
single location promotion. They would help assist and matchmake with other
organizations in Canada. The focus would be on companies that are
interested in expanding to the United States, but just as important to partner
with economic development organizations that are in Canada. With an
understanding of the OBPA, when there are successful companies in Canada
who want to expand, these Canadian Economic Development Organizations
can assist to see if the OBPA would be a good fit. The OBPA is not
everything for everyone, but the OBPA offers good niches. This would be an
event that Ambassador Cohen would introduce. This would be a very good
event and he has some good ideas about inviting special guests from this
side of the river.

> Director of Economic Development, Anthony Adamczyk, had a good meeting
with SUNY Canton’s VP of Strategic Relations and the Executive Director for
their Workforce Programs regarding possible collaboration. Everything from
CNC Operator to Construction Skills to Manufacturers.

> Director of Economic Development, Anthony Adamczyk, reported that there

are interested parties in the heavy industrial park parcels. They are still in



their due diligence phase, but are still very interested. They realize they
would be able to utilize the railroad and the port as part of any expansion in

the Industrial Park Campus.

V. Unfinished Business.
None.
VI. Business ltems

A. General Administration

1.

None.

B. Ogdensburg-Prescott International Bridge

ill.

A vote was called.

Approval of Lease Supplement No. 5 with Demers, Inc. On a motion made by David
D. King, seconded by Nicole Terminelli, it was

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to
execute Lease Supplement No. 5 with Demers, Inc. for 120 square feet of office
space in Suite 201A of the Bridge Administration Building for a one (1) year period
commencing February 1, 2024 and terminating January 31, 2025 at a rate of $18.57
per square foot equaling $185.70 per month, $2,228.40 for the one (1) year period,
inclusive of utilities, and be it;

FURTHER RESOLVED, that all other terms and conditions of the original Lease
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and are hereby ratified and affirmed.

AYES: David D. King
Nicole Terminelli
Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Vernon D. Burns
Toni Kennedy

MOTION CARRIED.

C. Commerce Park

1.

None.

D. Ogdensburg International Airport

1.

Approval of Advertising Agreement with WPBS. On a motion made by Toni
Kennedy, seconded by Jennifer Quirk-Pickman, it was,

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to
execute an agreement with WPBS of Watertown, New York for one (1) year of



television and website advertising for the Ogdensburg International Airport, which
includes thirty (30) television spots per week and one (1) rotating advertisement on
wpbstv.org, at a total cost of $6,000.00, and be it;

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the agreement shall commence on February 1, 2024
and terminate on January 31, 2025.

A vote was called.

AYES: Nicole Terminelli
Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Vernon D. Burns
Toni Kennedy
David D. King

MOTION CARRIED.

2.

Approval of T-Hangar Lease Agreement with James Robertson. On a motion made
by Jennifer Quirk-Pickman, seconded by Nicole Terminelli, it was

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to
execute a new Lease Agreement with James Robertson for T-Hangar No. 1 at the
Ogdensburg International Airport for a one (1) year period commencing October 1,
2023 and terminating September 30, 2024 at a rate of $240.00 per month, $2,880.00
for the one (1) year period, inclusive of utilities.

A vote was calied.

AYES: Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Vernon D. Burns
Toni Kennedy
David D. King
Nicole Terminelli

MOTION CARRIED.

3.

A vote was called.

Approval of T-Hangar Lease Agreement with Bird Tate. On a motion made by David
D. King, seconded by Nicole Terminelli, it was

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to
execute a new Lease Agreement with Bird Tate for T-Hangar No. 8 at the
Ogdensburg International Airport for a one (1) year period commencing January 1,
2024 and terminating December 31, 2024 at a rate of $240.00 per month, $2,880.00
for the one (1) year period, inclusive of utilities.

AYES: Vernon D. Burns
Toni Kennedy
David D. King
Nicole Terminelli
Jennifer Quirk-Pickman



MOTION CARRIED.
4. Approval of Task Order No. 1 with McFarland Johnson, Inc. Executive Director,
Steven J. Lawrence, introduced Jeff Wood with McFarland Johnson, to give some
background to this resolution. Given the scope of the terminal renovation and what it
means to the project, Mr. Lawrence felt it was important for Mr. Wood to speak to the

Board.

Jeff Wood, McFarland Johnson, reviewed the following:
- the agreement is for construction inspection services for the entire terminal

project.

- one bid was received today for bid package #2. McFarland Johnson is in the
process of evaluating it and at first glance it looks like it came in right around the
engineer's estimate. There were a number of bid alternates in there. Now that
there are hard numbers in there, they will go back and look at the budget and sit
down with Executive Director, Steven J. Lawrence, and the staff and figure out
where to go on what to award and what to not award.

Executive Director, Steven J. Lawrence, stated that there was a hope to have
things a little more clear cut to bring to the Board today, but being a little more
work is required, a Special Board Meeting may need to be called, given the
timeline for this. He only requires the Board's time for 15 to 20 minutes.

- The scope of work is construction administration. Part of it is project
management and part of it is grants administration. The grant requirements for
this project are intense and detailed, so McFarland Johnson has a grants
administrator who works with NYS DOT to make sure the reimbursements flow.
There are at least three grants that are a part of this project — there is a NYS
Grant, a NYS DOT Auviation Capital Grant, and there are FAA Infrastructure BIL
monies. McFarland Johnson has also applied for another BIL grant, on the
OBPA'’s behalf, that would help also fund the project. They haven't heard on this

yet. There's a lot of moving parts as far as the financial reimbursements —



A vote was called.

keeping the money flowing, paperwork done correctly, and everyone paid in a
timely manner, is important. The other big part of this is the on-site resident
project representative. There will be a local gentleman, who has worked here
before and lives in St. Lawrence County, as their full-time on-site person. There
are 280, 12-hour days budgeted for this. This also includes materials testing,
special inspection, and all the other things that go into inspecting structural steel.
Also, dealing with the contractor and scheduling and keeping everyone at the
OBPA informed.

Executive Director, Steven J. Lawrence, stated that with a quote over $100,000,
an IFE (Independent Fee Estimate) is required. With that, you give the scope to
another engineering firm, and they come back with their estimate of what it
should cost. This is a requirement to authorities from the FAA. This was done,
with an estimate from BCA Architects of Watertown that the cost should be in a
range between $2.5 million and $3 million. This quote is well under that.

On a motion made by Toni Kennedy, seconded by Jennifer Quirk-Pickman, it
was

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to
execute a Lump Sum Consultant Agreement for Task Order No. 1 to provide
Construction Observation and Administration Services for the Gateway

Improvement Project at the Ogdensburg International Airport.

The Task Order No. 1 costs associated with providing these services are
$1,748,027.36.

The FAA funding is provided through the FAA Airport Improvement Program
(AIP), and be it;

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the five-year agreement for Professional
Engineering Services between the Ogdensburg Bridge & Port Authority and
McFarland-Johnson, Inc., for Professional Services at the Ogdensburg
International Airport, dated May 11, 2023, shall govern all TASK ORDERS.

AYES: Toni Kennedy
David D. King
Nicole Terminelli



Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Vernon D. Burns

MOTION CARRIED.
E. Port of Ogdensburg
1. Approval of Electrical Connection to Complete CRISI Grant. On a motion made
by Toni Kennedy, seconded by David D. King, it was
RESOLVED, that the Director of Operations is hereby authorized and directed to
execute a Purchase Order with Collins Hammond to schedule the purchase of
the electrical connection for the CRISI grant equipment, a total cost not to exceed
$5,348.00.
A vote was called.
AYES: David D. King
Nicole Terminelli
Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Vernon D. Burns
Toni Kennedy
MOTION CARRIED.
F. New York & Ogdensburg Railroad
None.
G. Border Station
None.
H. Other Such Matters
None.
V.  Concluding Comments from Citizens, Board Members, and/or Authority Staff.
1. None.
VIIl.  Next Meeting Date
The next Board meeting was confirmed for Thursday, March 14, 2024, at 5:00 PM.
IX. Adjournment

On a motion made by David D. King, seconded by Nicole Terminelli, the meeting adjourned

at 6:00 PM.



Jennifer Quirk-Pickman Vernon D. Burns
Assistant Secretary Chairperson






OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
CHILDCARE INITIATIVE MEETING
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 29, 2024

A meeting of the Childcare Initiative of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority was

held in the boardroom of the Administration Building on Thursday, February 29, 2024, at 4:15

pm.
The following were present:
Toni A. Kennedy, Committee Chair
Nicole Terminelli, Member
Vernon D. Burns, Board Chair
ALSO: Steven J. Lawrence, Executive Director

Patricia A. Nisco, Chief Financial Officer
Anthony Adamczyk, Director of Economic Development
James Chase, Director of Operation

Committee Chair, Toni Kennedy, called the meeting to order at 4:20 pm.

Executive Director, Steven J. Lawrence, stated that there was a need for Executive
Session under section 105 § item f of the Open Meetings Law to discuss the appointment or
employment of a particular person or corporation. On a motion by Board Chair, Vernon D.
Burns, seconded by Nicole Terminelli, the meeting moved into Executive Session at 4:21 PM.
On a motion by Board Chair, Vernon D. Burns, seconded by Nicole Terminelli, the meeting
resumed at 4:54 PM. On a motion by Board Chair, Vernon D. Burns, the Committee
recommended to the full Board to move forward with C&S for design and construction
documents/bidding in the amount not to exceed $423,000, seconded by Nicole Terminelli.

On a motion by Board Chair, Vernon D. Burns, seconded by Nicole Terminelli, the

meeting adjourned at 4:55 PM.

Toni Kennedy
Childcare Initiative Committee Chairperson






OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 29, 2024

A Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority was
held in the Board Room of the Administration Building on Thursday, February 29, 2024 at 5:00 PM.
The following were present:
Vernon D. Burns, Chairperson
Megan J. M. Whitton, Vice-Chairperson
Nicole Terminelli, Treasurer
Toni Kennedy, Member
ALSO: Jennifer Granzow, Counsel
Jillian Brodock, Counsel
Steven J. Lawrence, Executive Director
Patricia A. Nisco, Chief Financial Officer
Anthony Adamczyk, Director of Economic Development
James D. Chase, Director of Operations
Charlie Garrelts, Airport Manager

ABSENT: Jennifer Quirk-Pickman, Secretary
David D. King, Secretary, Member
l. Vernon D. Burns, Board Chair, called the meeting to order at 5:03 PM.
Il. Unfinished Business
None.
. Business ltems.
A. Ogdensburg International Airport
1. Approval of Contract — Gateway Improvements Terminal Renovations. On a motion
made by Toni Kennedy, seconded by Vice Chair, Megan J.M. Whitton, it was
RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to
execute contract documents with Murnane Building Contractors for the construction
of the Gateway Improvements Terminal Renovations at the Ogdensburg
International Airport for a cost not to exceed $19,574,292.00.

V. Concluding Comments from Citizens, Board Members, and/or Authority Staff.

1. None.



VL.

Next Meeting Dates:

The next regularly scheduled Board meeting was confirmed for Thursday, March 14, 2024,

at 5:00 PM.

Adjournment

On a motion made by Vice Chair, Megan J.M. Whitton, seconded by Toni Kennedy, the

meeting adjourned at 5:12 PM.

Jennifer Quirk-Pickman Vernon D. Burns
Secretary Chairperson



(021'G29) 019'950'9 0L LEL'9 (y9g'6ee) ZL8'ZLY 9/1'8€9 SISNIIXT LHOLHIY TV.LOL
(680°L61) LIV 2G6'E 095'8¥L v (G82°%/L) 12002 958'vLY asuadx3 Syay
0815 /£0°9G1 /91701 6L6°L 616°L 0 asuadx3 |eba
(078°1LY) ¥95°LLY YOV €SP /V9'9 /86°LS ove'sy asuadx3 jsase|
LoL'zL 198'229 092'G55 (699°G) 106'6¥ 9/6'GS sasuadx3 |eJoues)
(292'¥¢) 686'/9 1¥2'T0L (982°2) £81°0L 69v'ZL asuadx3 Aunn
(220°/86) $20'86C 9v0°G88 (#12'G9) 0 #1269 asuadx3 sojes |an4
119'99 968'ZZL G8Z'95 €121 GL2'GL Zhy'8 asuadxg soueudjuieiy
(222'21) £€T'6EL G05'951 (¥28) ¥9.'6 885°01 sjyaueg sakojdw3
£8/'G 6€5'G.C 95/'69¢ G5, 99¢'€¢ 169°GZ asuadx3 Kiejeg
ISNIXT LHOdHIV
(822'08) 95¥'7£9'C ¥8L'vLL°T G/9'VEL 661°0LE ¥2G'GEC SISNIdXT F9aIdg TV.LOL
96.'GlL 685'LLL ££8'G6 259'8 GeT'sl £85'6 asuadx3 jeba
(9e0'¥9L) 269'29¢ 821925 (61L2'02) 9v6'0¢ 699'lS sasuadx3 [eleusn
6LY'LL) z€2's9 169'9/ (2z2) G8Y'9 10.'9 asuadx3 Aunn
LL1'TEL 0€£8'9L2C £50'v8 12Ty L6S'EVL 0/8 asuadx3 aoueusjuiely obpug
6S0'8 ¥56'.8 5686/ 6EP'Y v68'ClL SSv'6 asuadx3 soueusjuiely
(0£8°29) 209'L L9 TL¥'6.9 658'L 69V’ LY 0L9'SH sjjousg sahojdw3
Gov'9 166'8/1°L Z6L'TLLL (190'2) £/5'60L vEO'LLL asuadx3g Aejeg
ISNIJXI FOaIyg
SISNIdXT
#95°98Z LLLZBE 0L L¥L'960°0L [T Z4) 6vL°GLL 2z5°020°L JWOINI TV.LOL
¥SL'L ¥SL'2 0 0 0 0 oNuaAdY peoiney
$G8'GT ¥G8'Gh2 0 GLL'VeC GLL'V2Z 0 BLIoDU JSaleuf - [eUlULIS | BuLBH
9/6'/SY 860'G51'L 221'166 (621'22) 8/8'00L 160'8.1 anuensy (Hod) [euiuue] suuep
(£58°'/1) G8E'GHL 8ez'cL8 (zelL'l) 628'v. 1G6°L8 anueAsy sndwed yied [eLysnpul
(680°L61) LIY'1G6'E 095'8vL'y (G82'%L1) 12002 968" L aWIooU| Sy - 8nussy podiy
(GoF'9LY) 9/0'€2S L¥S'6£6 (#82°0¢€) Zr0'9e 928'99 Sejeg [an4 - snusAsy podily
Stb'Ze 191'€6€ TCL'0.€ (182'v) ¥8L°LE G9p'GE anueney podiy
Zrs'sllL 905'600'€ 96'928'2 £90'v2 0E¥' 292 19€'€he anueAsy abpug
JWOONI
(dapun) fenjoy Jebpng (tapun) [enyay Jebpng
J1=1Ye) aLA alA Ji=1Ye) Alyuopy Ayuop

TVYNLIV OL L390N8 v20Z ALVNNYI ‘ALRIOHLNY L¥0d ® 3OQRIG OYNGSNITD0




(L1S'%88°L) (€5€°£52) ((sso7)yure9 3oN) IWOONI ONILYHILO
6¥9'010'C GLL'86 — [eyded g sjoefoid Jo UOIOH YEJO
85069 — 129°9p e SUROT UO SjuaLifeq [edioutid
061°G65 (Lr0'80L) (L49°2LL) {ogr'z) ((sso7)uten 3oN) IWOINI ONLLYHIJO
125'282°6 ¥6L708°0L 09.°288 800°€Z0°L SISNIdX3T TV.LOL
1£8'0S 1£8°0S 0 LE0'Y LEO'Y 0 SISNILXT NOILY.LS ¥IaHOd
0 0 0 0 0 0 SISNIIXT VYO TIvy
(LOL'8EL) £25'9/8 $29'710°L (£Z8'7p) 90£'2. 629'9L1 SISNIIXT TYNINETL INIYYN TV.LOL
£96'61 €966t 0 0 0 0 asuadx3 [eben
$82'S 009'L¥ (002'S) 0 002'S asuadx3 Jsaisiu|
SP8'0re 0LL'€92 (ZyL'E) 9v5'0C 889'€Z sasuadx3 |elauas)
"_ vse'ey 612'GS (L6} 189'v 829'9 asuadx3 NN
6£G'6E 6/EV51 ov8'viL (1) 798°'L1L 088'L1L asuadx3 aoueusjulei
WTAWES G20'98L S06'8YlL 066'9 06681 000°CL sjyeuag sakojdwg
( ) v/1'861 062°06€ (226'0%) L9291 €€2'25 asuadx3 Alejes
JISNIdXT (LHOd) TYNINSTL INISVYIN
(L96'ELL) S60'691 9G0'EYE (192'%) ZLy'8e 6.9'2¢ SISNIIXT MHVd TVISLSNAN! TVLOL
68 Z89°L €8 05l 0SL 0 asuadx3 JsaJsju|
657’61 8/1'9v 612'92 ( ) €LE z/9C sesuadx3 {eIeud9
LEE /G 608'8€C 981 0£6'22 vv.l'ee asuadx3 Aynn
0.8'61 802°0¢ (022) Lge'l 120'2 asuadx3 soueusiuiep
019'8 98.'0Z ( ) £ee £v8'L sueuag sakojdwg
( ¥er'se 00.'GE GE Gev'e 00¥'€ asuadx3 Aejeg

ISNIIXI MHYd TYIHLSNANI




(9£9'161) ¥GC S8l 068'9.€ (G/9"LL) 65191 ¥E8'EE SISNIIXT MY TYISLSNANI TVLOL
£6Z'L £62'C 0001 0P 1S 191 ~ esusdx3 isasay|
66672 06E7S L6E 6T 0vS'S ZLZ'8 2.9'C sosuadx] [eJausn
(9£5'607) 6L0'ZS £65'1.92 (090'82) (91£°G) virlTT asuadx3 Ann
ZLo'y L¥8'9Z 62222 0567 1169 120°C asuadx3 eoueusjuEl
(6€5¥L) 8/0'6 119'€2 (€9€°T) 89V [1e8% syyeuag sahojdwy
L1S°L 119'0% 001°6€ £68°L £6C'S ["oor'e asuadx3y Aiees
ISNIIXI M&Hvd TVIMLSNANI
(vp0'cll) 06/ 7859 $€8'9GE/ (¥26'96) 081°825 ¥01'G29 SISNIIXT LHOJHIY TV.LOL
(1L02'962) GL2'992'v 9LY'€95' Y (z19'601) v¥Z'60€ 958'FLy esuedx3 svav
/8Z°0S 18Z'SL1 000'G2} (egs'L) 0SZ'61 ££8'02 asuadx3 [eben
(zee'op) ELr'TSY G/ 967 (L6¥' V) 68'0v ove'sy asuadx3 jsase|
105'G9 1£8'9/9 9£e’L19 (009'9) 0/6'8F 9/5'GS sosuadx3 [eisuan
(856'/€) 11G'G. 69V'ELL (969°€) 9z5'L zeT' Ll asuadx3g Aymn
(685'/99) £60'9€€ 8/9'€06 9cr'6l 690'8E £€9'81 @suadx3 se|es |en4
0£8'0/ ££6'62) 169'8G GZZ'y /£9'9 r'e asuadx3 aoueusjuIe
(008'¥2) 00V 6771 002'vLL (ges's) 29101 G69'L1L sjysueg safojdwg
80L'vL 100'€2E £6¢ 80€ GZ6'8 Zor'ly /€6'8€ asuadx3 Aejeg
ISNIIXT LSOV
(G8¥'9.1) 6./6'06'2 79y J0L'S (159'26) 220'S62 6.9'276E SISNIJXT I9aIHE V101
£66'L2 oLv'leL LL¥'50L 6€2'9 z28'st €856 asuadx3 [ebay
(080'251) ZIELT Z6€'8.6 GSK'S ozl'LS 59915 sesuadx3 |ejeusn
(€z28'L 1) OLr'vL ££2'98 (y0r) N 186'6 asuadx3 Amun
206°L9 0€8'9Le €265l (028°02) 0 0/8'02 asuadx3 soueusiuey abpug
GeL'0l 12216 08698 9/9C 1916 1602 asuadx3 soueusjuiep
(Los's0l) 0L0'059 L16'GS. (0£0'8¢€) 807'8E 8E¥'9L sjyeusg sehojdw3
#89'C 98Z'CvE'L Z09'6€E'L (¢el'c) 82,70l 0S¥'/91 asuadx3 Aejeg
ISNIJXT 3oaixg
SISNIJXT
91299} £28°622'L1 169°950°L} (8¥8'6LL) 299'078 015096 3WOINI TV101
(978°01) vSl'L 0008} (000°81) 0 000'8lL anusAvy peosjiey
¥58'GYe ¥G8'G¥e 0 51172 GLLPT 0 8LLI0oU| JSeIB)U| - (U8 auLey
¥0¥'005 061265 L 980°260°L SLLLL L19°T1L 9676 anueAsy (1od) [euiuie] sulep
(9/6%2) £12°0.8 681 'G68 (€21 2) 8z8'v/ 1G6°L8 8NnusAdY SNAWeD Yied [eLysnpu)
(lz2'962) 569'99Z'v 9lr'cos'y (ze9's0l) ¥2Z'60€ 968 LY 8WOoU| SYJY - 8nuanay Hodily
(156'85Y) 8L I¥S 69E'900'L (9gp'zy) TvE've 82899 sejeg jend - enuaasy Lodiy
¥Ge'al 9972y 0Lc'00F (160'0) 16¥'6C 88G°GE 8nuaAsy Hodily
965'G61 68802 182'6/0'C 950'/1 6./€'50¢C £2E'8ve anueAsy ebpug
JFWOINI
(4vpun) lenjoy 19bpng (4apun) [enjoy 196png
J1=TNe] alA aLa HOAQ Alyuon Ajyyuowy

TVNLOV OL 1390N8T $20T ANYNAGIS -ALRIOHLINY 140d ? 3901 94NGSNITO0




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY: FEBRUARY 2024 BUDGET TO ACTUAL

Monthly Monthly Over/ YTD YTD Over/
Budget Actual (Under) Budget Actual (Under)
MARINE TERMINAL (PORT) EXPENSE
Salary Expense | 32,058 28,212 | 422,347 226,386
Employee Benefits | 18,199 13,642 167,104 199,566 32,462
Maintenance Expense | 9,240 16,329 7,089 124,080 170,707 46,627
Utility Expense _ 6,628 4,250 61,907 46,504 | _
General Expenses 27,355 23,628 291,066 264,472 |
Interest Expense 5,200 1,308 46,800 6,592 | i )
Legal Expense 0 0| 0] - 0 49,563 | 49,563
TOTAL MARINE TERMINAL EXPENSES | 98,680 87,267 (11,413)] 1,113,304 963,790 | (149,514)
RAILROAD EXPENSES 0 0 0 0 0 0
BORDER STATION EXPENSES 0 3,587 3,687 0 54,424 54,424
TOTAL EXPENSES 1,150,297 930,215 11,954,492 10,719,237
OPERATING INCOME (Net Gain/(Loss)) (189,787) (89,553) (897,835) 504,136
Principal Payments onLoans = - 46801 e 515,859
OPBA Portion of Projects & Ombam\;., o .__.mé.mmw ——— 2,172,532
OPERATING INCOME (Net Gain/(Loss)) (298,237) (2,184,255)




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as of January 31, 2024

Current Assets:
Cash - Checking Accounts $ 153,359
Cash - Reserves & Other Restricted Accounts 6,864,168 @
Cash - Security Deposits 175,694
Accounts Receivable - Regular 175,877
Accounts Receivable - AEAS 1,103,588
Grants Receivable 143,459
Investments -
Inventories 80,316
Prepaid Expenses 51,290
Total Current Assets $§ 8,747,752
Fixed Assets:
Land & Land Improvements $ 46,674,118
Buildings & Building Improvements 108,711,370
Machinery & Equipment 8,813,510
Vehicles 2,018,770
Furniture & Fixtures 142,506
Signage 181,132
Bond Issuance Costs - 2017 Series 178,968
Total Fixed Assets $ 166,720,374
Less Accumulated Depreciation (78,957,091)
Net Fixed Assets $ 87,763,283
Other Assets: 1,323,916
Construction in Progress $ 7834477 @

TOTAL ASSETS § 105,669,428

Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable - Regular 679,652 (®
Accounts Payable - AEAS/Contour 240,071
Accounts Payable - NYS Retirement 124,033
Accounts Payable - All Project A/P 1,541,178
Current Portion of Long Term Debt $ 782,387
Accrued Expenses 21,623,684
Total Current Liabilities 24,991,006
Other General Liabilities 590,654

Long Term Liabilities

Long Term Portion of Long Term Debt 8,377,916
Total Long Term Liabilities 8,377,916
Capital 71,709,852

TOTAL LIABILITIES 105,669,428




Restricted Accounts - Top 5 Bank Accounts
Consolidated Reserve Fund - CBNA

Debt Service Reserve Fund - Wilmington Trust
Tompkins Trust Security Reserve Deposit

M&T Deposit - Bond Payable Reserve Funds
Watertown Savings Bank - LOC/Chequing for AEAS

8 Additional Restricted Bank Accounts share the balance

Construction in Progress - Top 4 Projects
Airport MASLF

Airport EA PH 1 Drainage & Terminal Area
Airport Revitalization Project

Port - Dock Wall Expansion

6 Additional Projects share the balance

Regular Accounts Payable - Top 10 Vendors
Parsons Transportation Group - Bridge Inspection
Wiadis

City of Ogdensburg

Excellus

OMLC

AEP

Liberty Utilities

E-Transit

National Grid

Strategic Development

73 +/- Additional Vendors share the balance

)

5,763,071
531,418
325,001
153,864

26,465

6,799,819

64,349

2,005,201
2,157,745
1,956,384
596,563

6,715,894

1,118,583

185,243.00
110,925.20
45,007.99
36,590.10
32,911.56
30,889.46
27,560.47
21,827.95
21,767.32
18,000.00

530,713

148,939

INCLUDES 1 LEO BILL



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as of February 29, 2024

Current Assets:
Cash - Checking Accounts
Cash - Reserves & Other Restricted Accounts
Cash - Security Deposits
Accounts Receivable - Regular
Accounts Receivable - AEAS
Grants Receivable
Investments
Inventories
Prepaid Expenses
Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets:
Land & Land Improvements
Buildings & Building Improvements
Machinery & Equipment
Vehicles
Furniture & Fixtures
Sighage
Bond Issuance Costs - 2017 Series
Total Fixed Assets
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Net Fixed Assets

Other Assets:
Construction in Progress

TOTAL ASSETS

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable - Regular
Accounts Payable - AEAS/Contour
Accounts Payable - NYS Retirement
Accounts Payable - All Project A/P
Current Portion of Long Term Debt
Accrued Expenses
Total Current Liabilities

Other General Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities
Long Term Portion of Long Term Debt
Total Long Term Liabilities

Capital

TOTAL LIABILITIES

90,270
7,806,696 @
175,697
233,303
465,037
9,976

80,316
38,522

8,899,816

$

46,674,118
108,711,370
8,912,499
2,018,770
142,506
181,132
178,968
166,819,363

$

87,472,222

$

1,323,916

7,897,370 @

105,593,324

842689
309,244
124,033
1,320,666
735,586
21,651,956

24,984,174

592,986

8,377,916

8,377,916

71,638,248

105,593,324




Restricted Accounts - Top 5 Bank Accounts
Consolidated Reserve Fund - CBNA

Debt Service Reserve Fund - Wilmington Trust
Watertown Savings Bank - LOC/Chequing for AEAS
Tompkins Trust Security Reserve Deposit

M&T Deposit - Bond Payable Reserve Funds

8 Additional Restricted Bank Accounts share the balance

Construction in Progress - Top 4 Projects
Airport MASLF

Airport EA PH 1 Drainage & Terminal Area
Airport Revitalization Project

Port - Dock Wall Expansion

6 Additional Projects share the balance

Regular Accounts Payable - Top 10 Vendors
Parsons Transportation Group - Bridge Inspection
Wiadis

City of Ogdensburg

Liberty Utilities

OMLC

Excellus

AEP

National Grid

E-Transit

Strategic Development

73 +/- Additional Vendors share the balance

6,263,902
533,437
423,557
333,608
192,770

7,747,274

59,422

2,005,201
2,157,745
2,019,278
596,563

6,778,787

1,118,583

185,243.00
145,996.91
45,892.65
43,021.42
40,803.30
36,590.10
33,930.80
32,648.80
26,193.54
25,500.00

615,821

226,868

PAID 23 MARCH 2024
$41,464.50
$101,296.42
$24,068.46
$27,560.47
$20,775.43
$36,590.10 on 7th of March
$28,395.10
$21,757.32
$13,096.77
$12,000.00



A 0

MO O

A0 0

¥16'88
66£°ZEr'PL 69F'PLLE 066°806' | 216'6¥'C ZEPLLZZ opL'I29°L 162°290°2
_lsv'8e0’'L | | G2L'98 | g2/'98 | gz1'98 'Gzi'o8 | gzl'o8 | 928'799
00L'60L'8 L LLo'szL'e 688'/€6°L | 645'0¥5'} 629'68Z'L 9v9'61L9 | 87€'009
£¥S' L. | lees'el | oes'tl | 9es'el  svETh | LIG'EL | €LOLL
9£6'9L1'2 | 820'GLY | £69'v6€ | ss6'8/€ | 66B'8/E | ¥Z2'60E | LLO'0vE
#00°G01 | SpL'LL LSvLL I spllL 1 spL'L | G¥E'LL | 89'01L
- zoz'opl YA 1258 A I VX% > 4 VL3 A V1) >+ | Lig'eT
| B0L'LLL loos've | 092'%E | 09L'7E 1 09L¥E | 690'8E o
- zi9'T8l 002’ | 002Z'S loog's | Gipe 0 . | L6S'Evl
628'€L 1 889°C1L 1 889'CL | 88921 | 0SL°0L PE0'PL | 285°)L
| 950'2s | 815'L | 8162 1 8l§'L | 815'2 | ssv'9 | 085'SL
65662 lev's  uev's 1ZYr'S 1zy's | 666'9 1Sz
820'8S | 2gz'ok | zgz'ol 78Z'0) | zgz'ol ¥6r'9 L0101
| 98Z'19L | | §Is'9e | Gl§'9Z | Gl§'9z | §15'92 | ZL0'6e | #5102
g98'eST | sev'ey |sev'zy | Gev'ey | gev'ey | $0E'8 | Log'sh
€£20'26 | LLL'E) | 692G} | §92'G1 r44: | 99v'CL 620'8l
b1Z's0z lgeese | zee'se | zee'se | zee'se v16'/G | 6909
LE1'sSy | | 28G'WL |essv.  |essv. | 1/6'l9 | 156'T6 | cov'os
2.8'€90°) LS9l LS Pal L2G'P9L ¥6G'851 060'6¥¢ GEG'ZolL
986°9¥E°8 690°222C 969°906°% 210'V86 | 256°051°} 096°LrZ°L 822°68.
£66'2/0'c | | zeT'IsE'l | Z9¥'000°L | 000'ZL | 00¥'6ET | 667’801 0
88Z'6PL | ¥96'v2 | ¥96'vT | ¥96'vC | Y98'vT G122 AV 74
| 985'¢8S | €0V'VS | 609'L8 | L2L'2h | 961'02) | €eEVLL 8/8'001L
L 9e69LL'T | | 8€0'GLY | €69'v6E | GSB'8JE | G96'8/E | ¥ZZ'60€ | 140'0be
L18'€ET | 85g'8F 9LV 1289y lovl'ee TvE'WT Zy0'9E
| 9898 | 629'6 | §29'6 ‘gov'e 8ll'6 | 8S¥'0) | 81G'8
| 226'S9r | 05¥'08 | 242'8L | 22282 | 122081 L LLE'RL | 62Z8'VL
L 9pL'Er9 | ¥8¥'L01 | P8P'LOL | p8F'L0L | P8Y'0L  €S0'LLL 8G6.'201
592'221 | 986'02 | 986'0Z | 2es'eL | 09L'8L | 8z6'vL | £89'ce
896'068 | 629'65) | GZE'ePL 0Sl'6ElL /60'GEL 960'GS1 | L28'P9L
IVLIOL sunp Aew ady yosew Asenuqoy fienuep
PL688

(sso)uies
dx3 - ouj Yuop yuaung
IO Joud

sosuadxz sejnboy
- esuadxg 192Q IV
asuadx3 |epde) @ uood Jueis) ydgo

$994 Juswabeuepy |euilla] sulep
Svy3v podiy

Buiyied poduy

031 uodiy

saseyaind [dn4 yodiy
soueusjuiepy abpug

1IN - @aueusjuiepy

dV - @oueusjuiep

dl - aueusjuiep

¥g - eoueUBUIR

leban

sosuadxy jeleusn)

saniinn

aoueInsuy|

s)iyeuag 33 *g soxe] ||0ihed
sabepp pue salees
esuadxg

auwoauy senBay
awoou| JaUyio
SWooU| Jsalaju|
S99 [eyuay % Suneladp Hod
Sv3y Hoduy
sajeg s|en4 Hoday
dY - oWodu| [eluey
di - awoou| [ejuay
g - swoou| |eusy
~ snusAay Hodly
awoou| jlo] abpug
awoouy

HIGWII3Q - ddueeg ysed

P20Z INNT - AYYNNYT ‘MO HSYD






A

A0

A

0

0

0

¥16'88

86E'ZEY'PL 89¥'PLL'E . 066°806°'2 2.6'S67'2 LEPLLZT 9pL°129°L 161°290°2

| 1sv'860°L | [ gei'o8 6z/'08 | g2.2'98 GZ/'98 | Ggl'es | 9Z8'799

| 860'60L'8 | LL0'6ZL'T _ 688'/£6'1L | 625'005'L G29'G8Z'L o9r9'619 8¥£'009

|

| E¥S'LL | 9eG'El ges'el | gggel | SPE'TL LIS'€L | €10°LL

| 9e6'9LL'2 | | 8e0Sly | €69'v6E | 666'8/6 | GG6'8LE | $2Z'60E | LL0'0V2
$00'S0L | | SPLLL Gyl'lL | GpL'LL | &bl | s¥e'2L | 6,9'91

K440 | | 2Le'eT LLE'E€C _ LIE'€C Llg'€C | 1i€'eT LIE'€T
60L'2L1 m 09.'ve 09.v€ | 08.ve  |09sve  |eg08e |0

zi9ToL .i| 002's | 00Z's 00z's | G/¥'E 0 | lBS'EvL

' 6ec8€L | 18897TL | 889°C) | 889°CI L ostoL 0¥l z85'LL

| 950'2S | 8182 /81872 _ 81G',L . 8l8'2 | G5P'9 | 0£S'SL
656'6C ﬁ | Zev's  ev's | ley's | 2v's | 666'Q 11621
820'8S 28201 | Z8Z'0L 28201 28201 61’9 20701

- 98Z'191L | | sls'oz | s16'92 | s15'92 | GLS'9z | TL0'SE | 5102
gog'ese | | gev'ep | sev'zy TAXAZ | gey'ey | poe'se | le8'sr

| €20'26 | 222'€L | §92°G1 | 692°G) Lzz'olL 9ov'ZL | 620'8L

| Llz'soe | zee'se | zee'se zee'se 1 gee'se | vle'lS | 6909
lgl'ssy | es8s'v. | ges'v. | 28S'vl 1 16°L9 | 156'26 | €9v'9.
2.8'€90'L LSOl LS ol LS ¥OL | ¥65°851 060'6¥2 Ges'zol
986°95°8 6902222 969'906°L 220'786 256'05L°}L 096°LbZ‘L 822°68.

| €65C/0C | 2ET'LGE 1 29¥'000'L | 000'2L 00v'6Ez | 66¥'60V 0

- 892'6FL | v9e're | 96've | ¥96VYC | 96T | GLL've AN 74
- 985'e8S | |eov'pS | S09'L8 | L2V | g6L'021 | eee'vll | 848'00L
9€6'9L1L 2 [ | 8¢0'GLY¥ €69'P6E _.@_Eml | §56'84€ | ¥ZZ'60€ | L20'0¥2
Zig'eee | I8gg'ey (942w | 289\p | ovl'sE | eYE'vT | 2h0'et
198°9§ | | Sze6 | G29'6 2or'e -8l | 85¥'0L | 816’8
2ee'sor losv'os | ir'8L | lll'8l | 112'8. LLLE'YL 628'v.L

L OvL'eV9 | | ¥8P'Z0L ¥8F'Z0L | ¥8P'20L p8¥'20L €S0'LIL 862201

G9z'leL | |ese'0z 9860z | Z2S'6l | o9L'gL 8TVl | £89°C¢
896'068 | 829'651 | gee'erl | 0SL'6€El /60'SEL 960'GG1 L29'POL

IVLOL sunp Aew Judy yorep Aienigoay Aienuep
vL688

(ssouen

dx3 - ou] YUOW Jusung

Yol 1olid

sasuadxz JejnBay

dsusdx3 3984 IV

asuadx3 [elideD ' UOILOd JUBID Yda0

s894 Juswabeuepy [BuILLIB | BULE

Svyay Hodiy

Bunyed vodiy

031 Hoduly
saseyaingd [en4 Hodiy
goueuatuiely obpug

1IN - SouBUSUIE

dV - soueusuiepy

dl - ®oueuaUIE

g - 9ouBUSIUIE

|eban

sasuadx3 |eseusn)

saplin

29uBINSUj

syjeuag 33 g soxe] ||oJAed
~ sebepy pue souejeS
asuadxgy

awoauf seinbay

awoaU| JIBYID
BWOoU| JSaJBlU|

S99 |ejuay B Bunesado Hod

d3IgW3034 -

Sy3av Hodiy
s9|eg s|on4 podiy
dV - 2wodu| [ejuay

dl - awoou| [eyuay
g - awoou| [eluay
anuandy Hodiy
alwoouy| |jo] abpug
awoouy

aaupjeg yses

¥20Z INNT - AUVNNVYT :MOTd HSVO






05291623

JBaj sepusies 10§ 8NUBASY JO SSOT

05°/vZ'0128 | 00'680°G8IS | %ivZl- L2y'e8 0z0'cL %6 0L- 968'L1 V6501 | %ELZI- LES 1L 9Zr'e9 | sSIviIOoL
GTP8LYO0LS | 00'650'888 | %9V'GL- 106°LY GZr'se | %Szl €29 ¥Sh'S %L6°G1- 199'GE 126'6Z | Arenuer
GZT'€90°901$ | 00920268 | %iv6- 9zs i | geg'z€ | ez | 2996 | Ovl'S %56~ | p9e'se | gop'ze | Aenigeg
_% [ _ | wew
B . _ | R [  |udy
| | | “ i (i | Rew
m m | T eunr |
- e =1 — | S— e —
| il DR | isnbny |
- - _ e o ~ |uequisydag |
_ u - T 120010
I o . R m o J3qUIDAON
_ I _ — | sequisseg
6102 202 sbueud % | 6102 vc0z [ ebueyD% | 610z | 20z | 9bUBUO % | 6102 | ¥20C Lpuop
anuanay sbuissol) |ejo| sbuissold 1auyi0 IV sbuissoid oy
G/'66528% | 00920265 | %llLEl LeT'ee | Geg'L€ %ZEL | €106 | Ovl'S %¥Z Sl ¥91'82 | SSv'ce | 6¢9ed
£202 | 202 sbueuyDy% | €20z | ooz | @bueud % | ¢z v20z | ebueyp o | €20z 202 -
aNuUAADY sbuissol) [e10L sbuisso1g Jayio |1V sbuissoi) ony | ged
G2T'€90'90L$ | 00920°26$ %Y 6 9z5°LY G6S'LE %2 6- 299's ovL's %15 6 ¥98'GE | GS¥'ze | 6z9ed
6102 202 obueyd % | 6102 v20c | 9bueudy | 610z | tzoz | ebueuD % | 6102 | +202 -
anuaAay sbuissoi) |ejo | sbuiss0l) JaYi0 IV sbuissoip oy L g4
¥20Z ¥VIA YVANITVO

SNOSIHYdWOD ? SIHN9IH DI44VH 1 39aIM8
ALIHOHLNY 140d pue 390ig D4NGSNITO0







00°S.¥°8¢%

1894 JBpUdle?) 10) aNUdASY JO SSOT

00'1L86'86€$ | 00°90S'00€$ | %9672i- | 986'¢el | v29'9LL | %z80L- | 2Z€6'ZL 266Gl %62 €l- ¥S50'9LL | 2€9'00L | SIV.LOL
SZ'V8LYOLS 00'650'88% %P GL- L06'L¥ gZP'se | %LSTL- | ¥EC9 ¥SY'S %.6°G1- 199'G€ L.6'6Z | Aenuer
6Z'€90°90L$ 00'920°26$ %.¥'6- 9z5'LY G6S'/€ %ZZ6- | €996 | Oopbl'S %156 y98'6E | GGp'ze | Aenigad
0s€e.'82Le | 00°Lev'SLLS | %9L€l- 655°0S ¥09'ey | %.G0L- | 9€0'9 | 8BE'S %61 PL- €25y | 90z'8e | uwsew
| [udy
- . B . >m_>_|
., - sunr
| N - Anp
- B | T - ||_, T e N = ﬁ:.mr( B
B — T— o T [ 1lsquieides |
I _. N _| _NmBMO h
_ . _ JOQUIDACN
_ o _ T 71 | Jequisoeq
6102 _ 202 abuey)d % 6102 202 abueyd % | 6L0Z | be0C abueyd % | 6L02 202 Yiuop
anuaAsy sbuissol) [eloL sbuisso1d JaYI0 IV sbuissol) oy
. 00892°568 | 00°L2r'SLLS | %988l ¥89°9¢ v09'cy %.G" L 0v8's 86€'S %.8'€Z vp8'0€ | 90Z'8¢ | L€ udiep
£202 _ 202 abueys v, £202 202 abueyd v £202 202 abueys 9, £202 202 -
anuanay sbuissoi) [ejoL sbuIsso1]) Jayio IV sbuissoid oy L yosep
0s'ecL'gcls | 00'LZr'SLLS | %9L€l- 65S'0G P09’y | %.S0L- 9¢0'0 | 86£'S | %bBL¥L- €25 vy 90z'8€ | L€ yorel
6102 202 ebueyd % 6102 202 abueyd % 6L0C | t20T abuey) o, 6102 202 -
anuansy sbuissoI)) [ejo sbuIssoi 1Byi0 IV sbuissoi] oy L youep

P20z dV3IA dVYONITVO
SNOSRIVdNOD ? SFUNOIH JId4VdL 39aKig
ALIMOHINY LY¥0d Pue 3901¥g D4NIGSNITO0







£€8 Jea ) e ul syjuswsaueldul 0oo‘0L
yoeay o} Junoy) Jebusssed Alyjuop wnusup 851’22 ueiba|y yim syuawoauedug 6102
rv6'8 Juelbaliy yim sjuswsuelduz 0202
SLi'el 908 BJ0L 610¢C
6.2't 8rs [E101 020¢C
¥81's z6z'ol £i9 elol 120C
866'L Tl8'L 616 Iel0] 2202
zee's LG IBJ0] €202
SLL‘L 0 yes %12 0 %Le 1SS 89 IBJo] ¥20C
JaquiadaQ
1aquIBAoN
18qopQ
Jaquiaydeg
1snbny
Alnp
aunp
ey
Hdy
yosep
168 0 ¥0€ %9¢ %L %94 0 %92 £6¢2 8¢ Aenigad
81§ 0 09¢ %62 %89 %09 0 %6¢ 86¢ o€ Aenuep
4NOLNOD
leljo| ‘A@y uoN | peueideg _ peo )4 _’mo:m_Eotmn_ awi] up _ uonaidwon | "asy uoN peo1 14 pauejdug _ sjybi4 _
UoneIAY JNOJUOD wodury [ruoprussy; Ssngsuepbo

tZ0Z 19quasaq - Arenuep
poday AjiAnoy 10Buassey







89°054°E (94+86¢€) 00'0 HONVIVE % STVLOL ANI-HLNOW 0L'TZZT'96 (88'1895T) 00°'0 FONVIVE ® STVIOL ANI-HLNOW
85°0GL°E (Lt€62) v20T/62/2 0L'182°96 (68°682) tzoe/6c/t

[ covo o v202/82/2 6511596 €120 .| | teoz/se/e b
SO0 tH0' (etrr6e1) +veoT/LelT 1L'€10°26 (02'889) +202/22/¢C
8t EBT'Y (20'zLT) +20e/92/¢C  1Z0LL6 (T16'169) B +20c/92¢/T
seese'y ) veoz/sc/c | Tev6e'se $20%/ST/T
85'gsED ] o +202/+2/2 TEP6E'26 - +202/+2/T
ce'geg'y veoz/ee/T TEF6E86 (82°66L1) i +20T/€2/T
SS'SSEY (er'89) - veoe/ee/c 09'€6T°00T log'sz6) +¥202/2T/T
86'CTH P — | +z0e/12/T OvTEITOT log'zor1) te0T/12/T
86'€CY'y . #208/02/¢ | ogszzzon lz6'e81) | +208/02/¢
86'€TH P [ +20t/61/T T1°60t'20T +202/61/C
86°CTH v208/81/2 Z1°60v°201 $20T/81/¢
 seteht v208/L1/T 21604201 | o ¥20T/ L1/

I 86°STHF +202/91 /T 21°60$'201 (ze1) v20T/91/T
i 86°CTH'Y +z0Z/S1/Z 5 0THZ0T (zs o) +20T/S1/2T
86'CTH Y (b6'L28) vzoT/+1/e 96'91+20T (se°6cT) - ve0z/v1/cT

76'196' {99'v25) vz0T/e1/e veosseor | {(bevL1) vzZoT/€1/T
8G79ES'S £6°St1) - vz0z/T1/e 89°0£L°T01T (9z°ze6) +20c/c1/T
1289 +202/11/2 ¥6'259'€01 o +20T/11/2
15°789' v202/01/2 $6'259°€01 +z0T/01/T

| 1sesos v20e/6/2 Y6'299°€0T (ss°2£21) ¥20%/6 \ml

15°289'S (9012}  veoz/ele 64068401 (91°62) | ¢Wom\m\ ¢ |
Hmm.o%.m {29°9¢) veoe/Lle ;.| $9°€89°501 (et L82T) +20T/L/T
T EE6'S (L0°c0%) +202/9/% | 80°'1L6°901 (t6's6v1) +20%/9/¢C
1£'9¢2°9 (0'10€) +208/S/T . 66'99°801 (8z'8121) be0z/S/e
bE'LESD vooe/vle 27'S89°601 - +ToT/v/T
e LESD Bl i teoe/elT 17'S89°601 vzoe/e/e
vE'L£5°0 (o220 | B +20e/c/c 12589601 oz | . +e0t/e/e
6892 L oLyl | +v205/1/% TLSOEDTT m (98°26ST) | vzoT/1/T

swreN ameN (14 /pp /)
Mo““””“ 19889 /9818g hﬂﬂ”—% _“W.«\MHMMVQQ MM_.”MMM— . _ 19889 /o3 1eg £31anyoy
Furareoay B ol | Burapeosy Jo ALvVA
$e'SELL JIuO Ise] woiy sdureqg Iurpuy 8S°€06°'TTT ‘qITO Ise|[ Em.a 2oueeqg Sujpuyg ]
B o IeS AMH. | | .
_ _ _ ¥c0¢ | AdvNdddd
909027 \w.-ﬂnwnovwo :I0J A)IAIOY A10judau] s[ersully sseduro) 0090z /3inqsuap30 :10J AIIANIOV Alojuasau] speloury sseduwo)







6£°0LET (z0"8L6) 000 TONVIVE ® STVLOL ANE-HINOK Z9'T1S'06 {0z z129) 00'0 FONVIVE % STV.LOL ANT-HLNOW
6£°0L2°C [ Z9115'06 _
6£°0LTT - . - zotisos | T
65°0LT'T - +20T/ 18/ CITIS'06 _ +20z/1¢/¢
| ecoree " tzoz/oe/s zoTIs06 | B vzoz/0e/€
6£°0.8'T vzoz/6T/E z9115'06 . veoc/et/c
02'829°C e1) veoz/se/e £6'STET6 +¥202/8¢/¢
SL'99.T - | v20z/L2/E 98'11L'T6 ) vz0eT/ LT/ €
£5°0£8° _ | bo0T/92/€ 9158126 B | ¥20T/9T/€
e 4 _ [ beoc/se/e _ LS'EEBE6 _ wma\ sc/e
96°820'C _ ooc/ve/e $5'020°v6 +e0e/ve/ e
| 96820 ¥T0z/8T/€ S5'020°k6 | vzoz/ez/¢
96'820'c | veoz/ee/e SS'020°6 +zoz/cT/e
96'320°€ T | veoz/ie/e 9T LTH t6 [ +70z/12/€
96820 i vz0z/0T/€ 1€°60Lb6 +202/02/ ¢
 96'820°s | veos/el/c 2 Tr0'S6 ) +202/61/¢€
96'820°C | v20z/81/¢ LbH02'66 _ +¥202/81/¢
96'820°C _ +z0z/L1/e 68 1vZ'S6 .. - vzoT/L1/€e
96'820°E _ +20T/91/¢ 68°'1+C'S6 +208/91/¢ |
96'820°¢ _ 208/S1/€ 68°142'S6 +z0T/c1/s |
96'820°€ - | vooT/v1/e 6814256 | bzoT/vi/E |
96°820°S $E0T/E1/E 90°962'G6 | vzog/ei/s |
96'820°C v20T/T1/E T L8856 . veog/el/e |
96820 . 208/ 11/¢€ £6°'685°C6 (1L i . b20T/11/¢
96'320°E o - v202/01/8 v'LT6'S6 N +50%/01/€
96'820°C veoz/6/c v LT6'S6 R +vooc/6/¢€
96'320°€ v20T/8/e by LT6'S6 _ | tzoe/g/e
96'800°C - v20T/ 2/ 06'£52°96 _ - | vzoz/Lle
96'820'€ i +202/9/¢ £8°L84'96 v202/9/€
96°820°€ - T veoelsle £8°LE4'96 o vzoz/s/e
96'820'C 20T/ /e £8LEL'96 +20T/v/€
96°820°C - vzoe/sle S9°ZLH96 +20T/€/€
96'820°C . veoz/e/e S9'TLH'96 - +z0T/T/€
96°'830'C | +202/1/€ S9TLH'96 v20T/1/¢
swmeN JmeyN (14 /pp /wax)
MMHMMM ressop/ofreg | ﬂ.“.-wﬂ._\ iy %.W. o _ uom_.wsnwm_ [9ssop fo8reg fy1apoy
Sujajasey Bujajesay Jo aLva
9b'8bT'S {qIuoly Ise| woly asuefeg Juipug F Z8'ETL'96 {q)uUO )SE] WoIj adouereg Supumg
_ XOMMVHL | | res AmH | I —
wodsjeraunwssedwmodgpsaayiea] - rewyg 03 (18D wre 00ig) Supwiojy Aepuopy £q yrodoy LLGRES A EL dwoagpsiayjea] - jrewny :03 (1S We o0:6) Suruzop Aepuopy £q poday
0090Z/3mqsuap3o :10] AJIATIOV A10juoAu] sreroully sseduwon 00907Z/3Inqsuap3Q :10] AJIAT}OY Arojueauj sreromiig ssedwo)







0
01S96¢t
0£¢v0T
0EST91
04502t
0£599¢
06€TCE
059¢799¢€
00v1i8l

Aojudnul sg1  Adojusaug S

00Sz¢E6
078566
08¢c6C6
0vES66

00°0
9L'61
v1'es
££°08
67°0TT
6L'CET
0£091
€9°Z81
0406

£T99%
€6°L6V
TLV9%
69°L6D

65°0¢
8¢'CE
£€9°8¢
€S'6¢
Sze

16°L¢C
€6'TC

NQ PAPNIL LS

99°'1¢

86'CE

Alojuaaul §g7 Aiojuaauf s

08119
09419
09z.S
0v06S
000stY
0¢8ss
098¢eY

£€6'T6 068¢81
L06 00vI8T

N0 PaYINIL SET  POAIIDY IS PAAIDISY ST

0cee9

09659

<0< AYVYNYY3d - S13113d

cee 0v¥99

INQ pYINILLS N0 PPNILSG] PanieIdy IS Panaray Sgi

202 AdvNY4g3d - TvaiN

06191506 19 ¥202/92/¢
0T89€S06 19 ¥202/12/¢
6089€506 19 ¥202/02/t
9518506 19 ¥20T/ST/C
6S9€€506 19 ¥20T/¥T/C
¥5/9€506 19 ¥2T0Z/¥1/T
TTYSES06 19 ¥T0T/vT/C
SETY0S06 - 6£091S XOVD ¥20T/L/T
¥ETP0S06 - TO0S6 X122 +202/4/¢
piemio wucm_mm
SYINdj - siedjiey aleQ

0v/95506 19 t20z/62/T
12E9YS06 19 vZ0Z/12/T

LSP8ES06 19 ¥20T/12/T
piemiod aduejeg
$)ond] - sipdfivy 230Qg






08vCL0T
0€ET06
(A TAVA
08EETS
ogrite
0€esct
059/81
0

97'9€S
8T'1SY
€0'95¢
£99¢
SL'8ST
£9729
€86
0

80°S8

56’76

€9°66

S6°£L6

8096
91'1E 0cees

€8°€6

0STOLT
006681
050661
006561
0sTcet

099/81

Aiojuanuj sg7 Aiojuaaul IS

0809811
ocbistt
08068T1
ocoeect
0TSPvITt
0Z¥S60T
088.¥0T
000066

00sctE6

90'€69
€4°9¢9
99°¥6S
€5°919
87'C8S
€L°1PS
96°€CS
co'se6r
LT99%%

AlojuaAuj g Aiojuanu] IS

INQ paYINIL IS N0 PaYPNIL Sg1 Paniasayg IS Paniaday Sgi

202 HOYVIN - S13113d

A4 oves9
LT'TE
L6'T¢C oveet
ST've
SS'vE
LLee
v6'8¢
SL°8¢

oveco

00589
00169
ovSLy
08845
00S.S

INQ PYONIL IS INOPaYONILSg] Ponjasayls paniasay Sgi

202 HOYVIA - TVIIN

S8/T9506 19 - 90¥CTE XAUD ¥20Z/6T/€

98/19506 14 - $90¢6 X12D ¥20Z/61/€

88/19506 19 - 920 X229 +20Z/ST/E

68419506 19 - TETVYT XIVO T0T/ST/€

£8£T9506 19 - 92056 X122 ¥202/ST/¢
6€/95506 19 ¥20Z/1/¢

¥609TS XDV #202/T/¢€
piemiod auejeq

SHINI] - SIDI[IDY 30g

S07/8506 19 ¥z0e/se/c
76897506 19 ¥207/8T/€
91¥84506 18 ¥C0C/8T/€
19/55506 19 v20Z/v/€
78685506 19 ¥20T/¥/€
£S9£5506 19 tvT0T/¥/€
8%9.5506 19 ¥202/1/€

09/55506 19 ¥20T/1/€
piemio4 acuejeg

SN[ - SI03[IDyY 210












OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
BUILDING OCCUPANCY REPORT
March 14, 2024

Commerce Park Campus

Building

% Occupied

Total SF Available Occupied

Tenant

1

71%

30,000

8,835

7,356
3,626
500
424
211
187
103
8,758

Lincare

AB Thermal Technology
West End Asset Management
Miracle Ear / Quality Hearing
KDM Analytics

Nova Networks

LiveFast Motors
Non-Rentable

100%

15,000

10,000
4,860
140

NAC Logistics
AN Deringer
Non-Rentable

23%

20,000

15,490

2,324
1,061
850
275

Day Automation

T-Base Communications
5G Technologies USA
Non-Rentable

100%

30,000

28,825
1,175

Strader-Ferris
Non-Rentable

11

100%

40,000

20,000
20,000

Strader-Ferris
Frank Ralphs, Inc.

12

100%

11,200

8,776
2,424

T-Base Communications
NYS Legal Service

14

100%

24,000

23,220
780

Med-Eng
Non-Rentable

86%

170,200

24,325

145,875

Page 1l




Bridge Administration Building

Suite % Occupied Total SF Available Occupied Tenant
BAB 100% 5,316 0
103 536 OBPA Economic Development
104 1,054 SUNY IT
201A 120 Demers, Inc.
201B 140 Cortech/Penski
201C 368 OBPA Executive Director
204 1,689 Stephens Media Group
205 207 Griffith/Lambert
206 182 Griffith/Lambert
207A 170 Dan Dodge
2078 220 Mack Global Engineering
208 158 Barbara Pleet
209 180 Knudsen Systems
210 292 Glenda Jones
100% 5,316 0 5,316
Port of Ogdensburg
Building % Occupied  Total SF Available Occupied Tenant
P2 100% 30,000 0 30,000 Compass Minerals/Thawrox
P3 100% 20,000 0 19,607 Ingredion - Grain Storage
393 NYOG Office
P4 100% 15,000 0 15,000 Corning
P5 33% 40,000 26,667 13,333 Ingredion - Grain Storage
P6 40% 20,000 12,000 8,000 Port Operations
P8 100% 23,000 0 23,000 Compass Minerals/Thawrox
Yard 100% 43,560 0 43,560 Steel Beam Storage
80% 191,560 38,667 152,893
Ogdensburg International Airport
Building % Occupied  Total SF  Available Occupied Tenant
Terminal 100% 10,800 0 10,800 TSA/Contour
Hangar 100% 3,672 0 3,672 Used for OGS Equipment Storage
T-Hangar 91% 11,550 1,036
1 1,036 Robertson
2 1,108 Richardson
3 1,036 Proven
4 1,036 Weston
5 1,036 Mueller
6 1,036 Bogardus
7 1,108 Oudheusden
8 1,036 Tate Jr.
9 0 Vacant - Used for OGS Storage
10 1,036 Richardson
1,046 Mechanical / Operations Storage
96% 26,022 1,036 24,986

Page 2




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
BUILDING OCCUPANCY REPORT
April 5, 2024

Commerce Park Campus

Building % Occupied  Total SF_ Available Occupied Tenant

1 1% 30,000 8,835

7,356 Lincare

3,626 AB Thermal Technology
500 West End Asset Management
424 Miracle Ear / Quality Hearing
211 KDM Analytics
187 Nova Networks
103 LiveFast Motors

8,758 Non-Rentable

3 100% 15,000 0
10,000 NAC Logistics
4,860 AN Deringer
140 Non-Rentable

4 23% 20,000 15,490
2,324 Day Automation
1,061 T-Base Communications
850 5G Technologies USA
275 Non-Rentable

6 100% 30,000 0
28,825 Strader-Ferris
1,175 Non-Rentable

1 100% 40,000 0
20,000 Strader-Ferris
20,000 Frank Ralphs, Inc.

12 100% 11,200 0
8,776 T-Base Communications
2,424 NYS Legal Service

14 100% 24,000 0
23,220 Med-Eng
780 Non-Rentable

86% 170,200 24,325 145,875

Page 1




Bridge Administration Building

Suite % Occupied Total SF Available Occupied Tenant
BAB 100% 5,316 0
103 536 OBPA Economic Development
104 1,054 SUNY IT
201A 120 Demers, Inc.
201B 140 Cortech/Penski
201C 368 OBPA Executive Director
204 1,689 Stephens Media Group
205 207 Griffith/Lambert
206 182 Griffith/Lambert
207A 170 Dan Dodge
207B 220 Mack Global Engineering
208 1568 Barbara Pleet
209 180 Knudsen Systems
210 292 Glenda Jones
100% 5,316 0 5,316
Port of Ogdensburg
Building % Occupied _ Total SF_Available Occupied Tenant
P2 100% 30,000 0 30,000 Compass Minerals/Thawrox
P3 100% 20,000 0 19,607 Ingredion - Grain Storage
393 NYOG Office
P4 100% 15,000 0 15,000 Corning
P5 33% 40,000 26,667 13,333 Ingredion - Grain Storage
P6 40% 20,000 12,000 8,000 Port Operations
P8 100% 23,000 0 23,000 Compass Minerals/Thawrox
Yard 100% 43,560 0 43,560 Steel Beam Storage
80% 191,560 38,667 152,893
Ogdensburg International Airport
Building % Occupied  Total SF Available Occupied Tenant
Terminal 100% 10,800 0 10,800 TSA/Contour
Hangar 100% 3,672 0 3,672 Used for OGS Equipment Storage
T-Hangar 91% 11,550 1,036
1 1,036 Robertson
2 1,108 Richardson
3 1,036 Proven
4 1,036 Weston
5 1,036 Mueller
6 1,036 Bogardus
7 1,108 Oudheusden
8 1,036 Tate Jr.
9 0 Vacant - Used for OGS Storage
10 1,036 Richardson
1,046 Mechanical / Operations Storage
96% 26,022 1,036 24,986

Page 2




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
MARCH 14, 2024 BOARD MEETING

Agenda ltem A. General Administration
1. Approval of Credit Card Policy

REPORT:

The Ogdensburg Bridge & Port Authority has had credit cards through Bank of America for some
time. However, there are old credit cards or recurring charges on old credit cards that the Authority
has that are in the names of employees no longer in its employ. Seeing this as a great opportunity
to start over, the Authority has obtained new credit cards through Community Bank, NA. A new

credit card policy, attached, will accompany the new credit cards.

Staff recommends accepting this new, updated policy for OBPA credit card holders.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Chief Financial Officer is hereby authorized and directed to introduce the new,
updated credit card policy for all employees who will be able to use company credit cards including the
completion of the signature page.

VL

A

INITIATOR / PREPARER Patricia Nisco APPROVED BY: _1//lc 7/ 1c ~
MOTION MADE BY Unanimous Yes [ ] No [ ]

SECONDED BY Abstained







OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
CORPORATE CREDIT CARD POLICY

OVERVIEW:

This Corporate Credit Card Policy for the Ogdensburg Bridge & Port Authority (the Authority) sets forth the
guidelines that will be applied to all employees who are issued a corporate credit card from the Authority. This
policy conveys company expectations and procedures for the issuance, application, use, safeguarding, payment,
and termination of a corporate credit card issued to the Ogdensburg Bridge & Port Authority's employees. This
policy will be effective as of the 15" of March 2024. Cardholders and their supervisors are responsible for
ensuring adherence to this Corporate Credit Care Policy, thereby taking appropriate measures to minimize the
risk of fraudulent or corrupt credit card use. The corporate credit card is meant to allow employees access to
efficient, flexible, and alternative means of payment for pre-approved expenses.

ELIGIBILITY & APPROVAL

A Eligibility: The Ogdensburg Bridge & Port Authority maintains a corporate credit card program for
full-time employees who will regularly incur business expenses. As a rule, eligibility will be limited to
management employees. In order to be eligible, the employee must travel frequently in the course of
his/her duties, travel internationally in the course of his/her duties, purchase goods and services for use
by the company, or frequently incur other business-related expenses of a kind appropriately paid by credit
card.

B. Approval: Eligible employees as designated by the Ogdensburg Bridge & Port Authority should
contact Patricia Nisco, Plan Administrator, who will handle all arrangements for obtaining corporate credit
cards.

PROCEDURES & POLICY

A Use & Financial Responsibilities: The employee agrees to comply with all applicable policies and
procedures of the Authority and this Corporate Credit Card Policy. The corporate credit card is to be used
ONLY for official business expenditures, not personal expenses. The cardholder is responsible for
ensuring that the credit card purchases are properly approved. The Ogdensburg Bridge & Port Authority
will pay for the total balance by the payment due date each month for each company approved charge by
the cardholder.

B. Expenses Allowed on the Company Credit Card:
1. Transportation fares (air, or train travel) for work-related meetings/conferences and
applicable taxes or tolls
2. Gas purchases or auto emergency related expenses only if using a company vehicle
3. Local Transportation during work-related trips (taxi fares, rental car, etc.) and parking
expenses
4. Accommodation and related expenses such as internet connection fees during work-
related travel
5. Meals during work-related travel
6. Training and/or educational material
7. Expenses involved in meeting with clients (jtinerary to be pre-approved)
8. Printed or business materials or other expenditures that require/are facilitated by the use

of a credit card for payment



C. Expenses Not Allowed on the Company Credit Card:
1. If employee is using his/her own vehicle (only if an Authority vehicle is not available) for
work-related travel, employee will receive mileage paid at the current IRS mileage rate. In this
case, gas purchases, EV charging, and regular car upkeep, etc. are not allowed on the company
credit card as they are to be covered under the mileage payment.

2. Withdrawal of cash, purchase of bank cheques or traveler’s cheques, and electronic cash
transfers

3. Parking tickets and/or speeding fines

4, Laundry, theatre tickets, entertainment entrance fees, and other personal charges

5. Alcohol, drugs, weapons, pornography or other adult entertainment

6. Expenses of Non-Employees: should an employee bring his/her spouse or other non-

employee while traveling, any transportation, lodging, meal, or other expense for the non-
employee must be paid by the employee. This includes the difference between, say, a single-
occupancy room rate (for the employee only) and a multiple-occupancy room rate (for the
employee and non-employee} at a hotel or conference.

D. Credit Card Use for Travel & Conferences: For detailed information on travel and
conference/meeting attendance, please refer to the Ogdensburg Bridge & Port Authority’s Travel Policy.

E. Exceptions: The Authority recognizes that each case is different and that one employee may
require a consideration different than another employee. Therefore, an employee has the right to apply
for an exception with an explanation. Exceptions will be determined on case-specific circumstances.

F. Spending Limits: Each credit card, with the exception of the Chief Financial Officer, will have a
$4,000.00 limit. This limit may be revised should circumstances arise, and will be dealt with on a case-by-
case basis.

G. Receipts and Expense Reports: Cardholders must forward physical proof of each transaction with
the corporate credit card to the appropriate Account Clerk. An itemized receipt, online confirmation and/or
packing slip (in the instance of an online purchase) are acceptable forms of physical proof of expenditure.
The following information will be visible on a credible transaction: date of purchase, vendor name,
quantity, unit price, and grand total of expenditures, as appropriate. Restaurant expenditures should have
both the top credit card receipt and the itemization of bill. Additionally, a written notation should
supplement restaurant receipts with the business purpose and names & titles/affiliations of persons in
attendance. The Chief Financial Officer and/or Executive Director reserves the right to review monthly
credit card statements, with or without cause.

H. Credit Card Violations & Consequences: Credit Card Violations include the items listed in Letter
C.; allowing unauthorized users to use the corporate credit card; exceeding the credit card limit; failing to
return the credit card when a cardholder is terminated; or any terms determined by the Ogdensburg
Bridge & Port Authority. Non-compliance with the conditions of this policy or to any Authority policy that
may apply to this Corporate Credit Card policy, could result in cancellation of the card and withdrawal of
corporate credit card privileges. Any breach of this policy may also result in disciplinary action against the
employee up to and including termination. Purchase of drugs, weapons, or pornography will result in
immediate termination and possible legal action. The Authority will consider the facts and circumstances
of each incident and will take action as deemed appropriate for the incident or continued pattern of
misuse. The Ogdensburg Bridge & Port Authority reserves the right to recover any monetary
consideration from the cardholder.



. Ownership and Cancellation of the Credit Card: The cardholder is accountable for all activity on
the corporate credit card in his/her name. This corporate credit card may not be transferred, assigned to,
or used by anyone other than the designated cardholder. The credit card will be returned to the
Ogdensburg Bridge & Port Authority upon any notification of termination, and the cardholder must
reconcile all expenditures on the credit card since the last credit card statement. It is the responsibility of
the departing cardholder to ensure that the account is settled prior to departure.

J. Disputed Items: It is the cardholder’s responsibility to follow-up on any erroneous charges,
returns, or adjustments to ensure that proper credit is given on subsequent statements. The Chief
Financial Officer, as Plan Administrator and Liaison with the Bank, must also be notified of any disputed
items and ongoing updates until the matter is resolved.

K. Protecting the Credit Card: Lost or stolen cards must be reported immediately to one of the
following: the employee’s supervisor, the Accounting Supervisor, the Chief Financial Officer, or Executive
Director within two (2) business days of the incident.

L. Safekeeping: Newly issued credit cards should be signed immediately by the Cardholder. All
credit cards will be kept safely at the Bridge Administration Building and can be signed out when needed.
When using the card for approved internet transactions, care should be taken that the site utilizes
recognized encryption technology. Card numbers should not be saved or stored in online accounts.

M. Contact Information: For any issues, comments, or questions regarding the use of the Corporate
Credit Card or any of the policies discussed herein, please contact Patricia Nisco, Chief Financial Officer,
during working hours in her office, at 315.393.4080, ext. 231 or pnisco@ogdensport.com. Please do not
assume “if it is not in the policy, it is okay”; ask if there is an instance that is not covered.



EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

1, , acknowledge that | have received and understand the
Ogdensburg Bridge & Port Authority’s Credit Card Policy as approved by the Board of Directors on the
14™ of March 2024, and agree to abide by the policies stated herein.

| also acknowledge that the limit on my corporate credit card is $4,000.

Signature of Cardholder Date



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
MARCH 14, 2024 BOARD MEETING

Agenda ltem A. General Administration

2. Approval of Use of NYS Travel Manual

REPORT:

With the institution of a new credit card usage policy for the Ogdensburg Bridge & Port Authority,
staff realized that, as a matter of housekeeping, the travel policy had not been reviewed by the
Board of Directors in some time. The Authority follows the Travel Manual as updated by the Office
of the State Comptroller, State of New York.

Staff recommends the use of the NYS Comptroller's February 2024 Travel Manual to update its
travel policy.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Chief Financial Officer is authorized and directed to update the Ogdensburg
Bridge & Port Authority’s travel policy following the February 2024 NYS Comptroller’'s Office Travel
Manual and make future revisions based on updates from the State Comptroller’'s Office.

ys

INITIATOR / PREPARER Patricia Nisco APPROVED BY: U rL:L""M/L_

MOTION MADE BY Unanimous Yes [ | No []

SECONDED BY Abstained







State of New York
Office of the State Comptroller
Travel Manual

Prepared by:
Division of Contracts and Expenditures
Bureau of State Expenditures

Revised: 2/22/2024



TJABLE OF CONTENTS

TRAVEL POLICY STATEMENT 1
GENERAL GUIDELINES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 1
AGENCY RESPONSIBILITY ......cciiiiueairieuiasraastrecsiaaeateseasteseassesmsesssesaesssmessasssereseams sesssessssssmserasesesestresssessssessasess 2
SUPERVISOR’S RESPONSIBILITY .....ccoovirestreemenssereessetscensassescsstea e suc et ms sesemssssenssemsasatansoseatase asansnseneuesensmseseses 2
TRAVELER'S RESPONSIBILITY........ooomietuetiiutiresesesssesensens et esssseseassasassssastsesssnssesssassssesasesessssesstosissssssnsnsasnssss 3
OFFICIAL STATION 3
DETERMINING TRAVEL STATUS 3
TRAVEL IN PROXIMITY OF OFFICIAL STATION OR HOME 4
REIMBURSEMENT ALLOWANCES. 4
OVERNIGHT TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT ......cc0i01tieetieeireseasseseanerssaassresssnsssmsssessstmcnssosssssssssssassassrssssessssssersnssaens 4
UNRECEIPTED METHOD (METHOD 1 M..ccoceirecninnrecensneesvececens rrasienseresessensanaes 4
RECEIPTED METHOD (METHOD 2)....ccucocticutucesseresessseresessonssassssmmstseesscssssssssessoresssssesassassasssssasesasasssiasasessessas 5
DAY TRIP REIMBURSEMENT ..........coovovtiuitrensemieseressatssasessessmnssesinnsieessanse sessscinssessasansntassscssnssessnesensiosestosssssensas 6
MEALS AND LODGING PROVIDED BY AGENCY.....cuoriiimiuiininimac it rns e ems s mesnssnsesssesenesssesssnssssenses O
WEEKEND ALLOWANCE .........oc.uourieesstnrsetamsssesisessssssssassssessssssssesiosssmissatssstssiess sassassssstnsastasassasesbasssassessassesessons 6
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 6
REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES ... oottt et etesenee et seeesetses et s sasa st e sese s rme e sesbea et s sansan e es b b renaran 7
INONREIMBURSABLE EXPENSES......c.creuiteeiaaitiieeseote st esiesesenassans sesssseaesssssessssssesssessesssssasssansemmensanessnsesssssanmnns 7
CONFERENCE CONSIDERATIONS 7
FOREIGN TRAVEI 7
EXTENDED TRAVEL 8
TRANSPORTATION 8
COMMON CARRIER........o0rtiivetemenneesnsiessssosiosesesssesssoseiosesansssensissssssssmessessans s aeuststsensesesassenstsesstsersnsssassassseresasasn 9
PERSONAL VEHICLE.......cocuiieieiiustettisteersessstiescessesteseseeissasatasesstesats nmsssteseussemsssassssseasasasassssesssssnsansnsssresssestaoares 9
STATE VEHICLE ...
RENTAL VEHICLE
TRAVELBY PERSONALLY OWNED AIRPLANE.......cecsretcriteertetresmemsreessesseasssasasessessessemsoesenssssensiosensonsossensa 10
ADDITIONAL TRANSPORTATION EXPENSES.......coirmriecrecerieosiirieitensisassssssessesesanssonsssssssssesssnssesissssssssasasens 10
TRAVEL CARD PROGRAM. 11
TRAVEL ADVANCES. 11
RECEIPT REQUIREMENTS 12
IRS REQUIREMENTS 12
INTERVIEWS FOR EMPLOYMENT. 13
COMMISSIONERS AND CERTAIN SENIOR OFFICIALS 13
DAY TRIP REIMBURSEMENT ........ccteteieisiatsiemsiascnssstsessssesssomssssssoesssisestossssssesosersssssesstsscsssensensasasassssssioses 14
CERTIFICATION OF EXPENSE REPORTS.....cc.ocvirirereiiinctiirirt et et sreeees e st et st shass o seseessnaenensansnanns 14
NON-SALARIED PUBLIC OFFICERS 14

DAY TRIP REIVIBURSEMENT ....c.ceeeececeeecceeeeeeevseeeetseseesssss et sssebenmassasessenraneseansssensessestresnsassnssserssevsnssenesnsasnssns 1



Office of the State Comptroller - Travel Manual

Travel Policy Statement

The purpose of this Travel Manual is to help agencies, employees and certain public officials understand and
apply the State’s travel rules and regulations and to provide instructions regarding reimbursement for
expenses while in travel status. The Office of the State Comptroller sets rules and regulations for
reimbursement of expenses incurred while traveling on official State business. These rules and regulations
are also included by reference in collective bargaining agreements. When an employee travels on official
State business, only actual, necessary and reasonable business expenses will be reimbursed.

Employee reimbursements are processed and paid through the Employee Expense function in the Statewide
Financial System (SFS), and non-employee expenses are processed through the Accounts Payable (AP)
function.

As discussed in more detail in this manual, the State of New York has a Travel Card Program (travel card) to
provide State employees with a mechanism to pay for travel expenses.

In conjunction with the implementation of SFS, the Office of General Services (OGS) created the Non-
Employee Travel Card (NET-Card), which is used for non-employee travel expenses. NET-Card
transactions are reconciled through the SFS AP function and should not be used for employee travel
expenses. OGS has posted additional information on the set-up and maintenance of NET-Card accounts.

A State procurement card should be used when making State purchases of goods and services not related to
employee or non-employee travel. For more information related to the appropriate use of an agency issued
procurement card, refer to the Procurement Card Guidelines.

General Guidelines and Responsibilities

> Employees are in travel status when they are 35 miles or more from both their official station
and their home (defined in the Official Station Section of this manual).

» The designation of official station will be determined by agency management in the best interest of
the State and not for the convenience of the employee. The Comptroller's Office reserves the right
to request justification from an agency to support its designation of official station. Official station
designation relates to the position, not to the person (i.e., a full-time employee working for one
agency in one position will have only one official station; a part-time employee working for two
agencies in two different positions will have two official stations).

> Travel between the employee’s home and official station is considered commuting and should not
be reimbursed. Reimbursing commuting costs can have significant tax consequences for the
employee (please refer to the Guide to Financial Operations Chapter XIII, Section 6 for more
information).

» Expense reports should be submitted within 30 days of the end of the travel event to account for all
expenses, reimburse the traveler for out-of-pocket expenses and reconcile the associated agency
travel card charges. Employees are still required to submit expense reports to account for all
expenses even if they miss the 30-day submission window.

» Agencies should check OGS contracts for the type of travel-related services available. Currently,
OGS has contracts for car rentals, air travel, and centralized travel agent services, both statewide
and regional. Travel agents may charge a transaction fee for various services. You can obtain more
information on these contracts through the OGS website.

Page 1 of 14



Office of the State Comptroller - Travel Manual

Agency Responsibility

Ensure:

VVVVY

VVYVY V¥V

v

all authorized travel is in the best interest of the State.

all expenses are actual, reasonable and necessary.

the most economical method of travel is used in the best interest of the State.

compliance with Internal Revenue Service (IRS) regulations.

the official station of each employee is designated in the best interest of the State. Where it is not
the employee’s usual work location, ensure proper tax reporting consistent with the Guide to
Financial Operations Chapter XII1. Section 6. '

employees obtain appropriate approvals prior to traveling, and exceptions or waivers are justified
and necessary.

adequate funds are available for travel.

all travel card charges are reconciled correctly.

any overpayments or improper charges are recovered promptly.

all expenses comply with the State Comptroller’s rules and regulations, this Travel Manual, the
Guide to Financial Operations and policies published by oversight agencies such as the Division of
the Budget and the Governor’s Office of Employee Relations.

if the agency processes expense reports through OGS’s Business Service Center (BSC), all expenses
comply with BSC requirements.

original receipts are maintained in accordance with State Archives and Records Administration
guidelines.

Establish:

>
>

>

an agency-specific policy related to travel procedures when employees are in travel status.
procedures to ensure accountability of cash advances and appropriate use and timely reconciliation
of travel card charges.

procedures for the review and approval of employee expense reports in a complete and timely
manner.

Provide:

>

>

guidance and training to agency supervisors and staff in proper procedures for reimbursing travel
expenses.

a means (e.g., travel card, cash advance) to minimize out-of-pocket travel expenses and control all
travel-related documents (e.g., expense reports, tax exempt certificates).

Maintain:

>

legible receipts and other supporting documentation, which must be made available for audit upon
request. (Original receipts or legible scanned copies are acceptable. For more information about
required receipts, see the Receipt Requirements Section of this Travel Manual.) Agencies are
required to maintain the receipts and cannot delegate this responsibility to the travelers.

Supervisor’s Responsibility

>
>
>

Know the State’s travel rules and regulations.

Know your agency's specific travel policies and procedures.

Know your staff’s official station and the effect on their travel reimbursements, including, where
applicable, the taxability of reimbursements (please refer to the Guide to Financial Operations
Chapter XIII, Section 6 for more information).

Authorize travel only when necessary.

Page 2 of 14



Office of the State Comptroller - Travel Manual

» Review travelers' itineraries in advance to ensure the most economical method of travel is used in
the best interest of the State.

» Verify that expenses are within allowable rates and all required documentation is included (e.g.,
scanned or attached) and that expenses are actual, necessary and reasonable (for more information
about required receipts, see Receipt Requirements Section of this Travel Manual).

» Review and approve expense reports in a complete and timely manner.

Traveler's Responsibility

Know State travel rules and regulations.

Know your agency's policies and procedures.

Know your official station and its effect on (i) your eligibility for travel reimbursement, and (ii) the
taxability of certain expenses (please refer to the Guide to Financial Operations Chapter XIII.
Section 6 for more information).

Obtain necessary approvals for travel, including method of travel.

Secure the most economical method of travel in the best interest of the State.

Obtain all necessary travel documents (e.g., expense report, tax exempt certificate, receipts).
Use the travel card to minimize out-of-pocket expenses.

Maintain an accurate record of expenses including departure and return times, and mileage.
Include required receipts or documentation when submitting expense report (for more information
about required receipts, see Receipt Requirements Section of this Travel Manual). '

Submit claims for reimbursement for only actual allowed expenses within reimbursement rate
limits.

Promptly account for any cash advance received, or charges made to the travel card.

Submit accurate expense reports within 30 days of the end of the iravel event,

VVVv

vV ¥V VVVVVY

Official Station

The official station should be the employee’s usual work location. The official station is designated by the
agency and the designation must be in the best interest of the State. The purpose of an official station is to
establish when the employee is in travel status and eligible for reimbursement of travel expenses. Travel
between the employee’s home and official station is considered commuting and is generally not
reimbursable. The employee’s home is considered to be in the city or town in which the employee primarily
resides when working at their official station. If an employee works at more than one location, the
employce’s official station will normally be the employee’s main place of business (i.e., the place where the
employee works more time than any other work location).

While an agency can still make a designation in the best interest of the State, if an agency assigns an official
station that is not an employee’s main place of business, there may be tax reporting obligations on the part of
the State and potentially significant tax consequences for the employee. Please refer to the Guide to
Financial Operations Chapter XIII, Section 6 for additional gnidance on the potential tax consequences of
assigning an incorrect official station.

Determining Travel Status

When employees are on assignment at a work location 35 miles or more from both their official station and
their home, they are considered in travel status and are eligible for reimbursement of travel expenses in
accordance with this Travel Manual. Employees must obtain appropriate approvals prior to traveling for an
assignment.

Page 3 of 14



Office of the State Comptroller - Travel Manual

Travel in Proximity of Official Station or Home

When an employee is assigned to work at an alternate work location which is less than 35 miles from either
their home or their official station, the employee is not considered to be in travel status, but rather is
considered to be traveling in the proximity of their official station. When traveling in the proximity ofhome
or official station, an employee using a personal vehicle is, as outlined below, entitled to reimbursement of
transportation expenses associated with travel:

e from home to an alternate work location.

between the official station and an alternate work location.
between alternate work locations.

from an alternate work location to the employee’s home.

® & o

When travel is from an employee’s home to an alternate work location, or from an alternate work location to
home, at a minimum, transportation expenses must be reimbursed using the lesser of 1) mileage between the
employee’s home and the alternate work location or 2) mileage between the employee’s official station and
the alternate work location, multiplied by the IRS mileage reimbursement rate. This reimbursement method
is called the “lesser of mileage rule.” Agency management has the discretion to establish a reimbursement
policy that provides for reasonable reimbursement of transportation expenses in excess of the amount
calculated under the “lesser of mileage rule.” Click here for examples of the application of the lesser of
mileage rule.

When travel is between an employee’s official station and an alternate work location, or between two or
more alternate work locations, transportation expenses must be reimbursed by payment for the actual mileage
between such locations, multiplied by the IRS mileage reimbursement rate.

The expense of meals or lodging within the proximity of the employee’s official station will not normally be
reimbursed unless it is in the best interest of the State, as determined by the head of the agency's finance
office. Reimbursement for travel in the proximity of the employee’s home or the employee’s official station
is subject to the audit of the Comptroller. Commuting costs generally should not be allowed between an
employee's home and their official station, On the rare occasion, these may result in tax consequences
associated with the reimbursement, some of which may be significant to the employee. For additional
information, please refer to the Guide fo Financial Operations Chapter XIII. Section 6.

Reimbursement Allowances

Overnight Travel Reimbursement

Employees may choose one of two methods for expense reimbursement for overnight travel, whichever is to
their advantage. Travelers may not, however, combine the two methods on the same overnight trip. An
overnight trip is defined as dinner, lodging and breakfast the following morning. Breakfast and dinner are
reimbursable meals; lunch is not.

Unreceipted Method (Method 1)

This method provides for a fixed rate allowance for meals, lodging and incidental expenses regardless of
where lodging is obtained, including lodging with relatives or friends. Rates are established based on the city
or county where lodging is obtained or the location to which the employee was traveling (whichever rate is
less), and such location must be indicated on the expense report. No receipts are required to claim this
method of reimbursement, but receipts are required for travel card charges — even if the charges are related to

Page 4 of 14



Office of the State Comptroller - Travel Manual

meals for this overnight trip. Receipts are also required for expenses not included in the fixed rate
allowances for meals, lodging and incidental expenses.

Current rates are as follows:

Locatien Per Diem
New York City and Nassau, Suffolk, Rockland and Westchester

C . $50.00

ounties

Cities of Albany, Binghamton, Buffalo, Rochester, Syracuse and $40.00
their respective surrounding metropolitan areas ‘
All other locations in New York State $35.00
Out of State (this includes any out of state tax on lodging) $5000

Travelers using this unreceipted method are also eligible for an additional $5.00 for breakfast on the day of
departure if they have to leave at least one hour before their normal work start time. They are also eligible
for an additional $12.00 for dinner on the day of return if they return at least two hours later than their
normal work ending time.

For example, a traveler leaves Albany at 7:00 a.m. heading to New York City. The traveler stays overnight
at a friend’s house in New York City and arrives back in Albany the next day at 6:00 p.m. The traveler’s
scheduled work hours are from 8:00 a.m. t04:00 p.m. The traveler is entitled to the unreceipted per diem of
$50 for the one-night stay in New York City. In addition, the traveler is entitled to an additional $5.00 for
breakfast and $12.00 for dinner.

Receipted Method (Method 2)

This method provides reimbursement of actual lodging costs and an allowance for meals and incidental
expenses based on federal reimbursement rates for the county of lodging. The per diem rates for locations
within the continental United States are revised annually (Click here for current rates). Since rates are based
on location of lodging, the city and state of the lodging location must be indicated on the expense report.
Receipts are required for lodging. Receipts are not required to claim Method 2 meal per diems, but receipts
are required for travel card — even if the charges are related to meals for this overnight trip. Receipts are
also required for expenses not included in the fixed rate allowances for meals, lodging and incidental
expenses.

For each day the traveler is in overnight travel status, the traveler is eligible for reimbursement for lodging up

to a maximum lodging per diem and meals at a per diem fixed allowance. The meal per diem is for dinner
one night and breakfast the following day.

Travelers using this method are also eligible for an additional per diem for breakfast if they have to leave at
least one hour before their normal work start time the first day of travel, and/or for dinner if they return at
least two hours later than their normal work ending time on the last day of travel. In these cases, breakfast
and/or dinner will be reimbursed up to the maximum amount of the meal per diem allowance specified for
the particular area of lodging. The meal per diem allowance is apportioned for breakfast and dinner. Please
refer to the Guide to Financial Operations Chapter XIII. Section 4.D for current meal allowances.

Page 5 of 14



Office of the State Comptroller - Travel Manual

Maximum lodging rates exclude taxes. For travel within New York State, a Tax Exemption Certificate (ST-
129) should be used. For travel outside of New York State, state and local taxes are not included in the
maximum lodging amount and will be reimbursed in addition to the per diem amount.

Finally, on occasion, travelers may be unable to find a hotel at a rate that does not exceed the maximum
federal lodging per diem rate for the location of travel. If that occurs, travelers must obtain prior approval
from his/her agency finance office to exceed the federal lodging per diem rate.

Day Trip Reimbursement

Travelers may be reimbursed for breakfast and/or dinner for day trips based on departure and return times.
Travelers are entitled to reimbursement for breakfast if they have to leave at least one hour before their
normal work start time, and/or for dinner if they return at least two hours later than their normal work ending
time.

Travelers without meal receipts are reimbursed $5.00 for breakfast and/or $12.00 for dinner. For example, a
traveler leaves Albany at 7:00 a.m. for New York City. The traveler arrives back in Albany the same day at
6:00 p.m. The traveler’s scheduled work hours are from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. The traveler is entitled to
$5.00 for breakfast and $12.00 for dinner.

Travelers with meal receipts are reimbursed up to the maximum amount of the meal per diem allowance
{Method 2) specified for the particular area related to the travel destination. The meal per diem allowance is
apportioned for breakfast and dinner. Please refer to the Guide to Financial Operations Chapter XII1, Section
4.D for current meal breakdowns.

Day trip meal reimbursements are reportable as income to the IRS.

Meals and Lodging Provided by Agency

If meals and/or lodging are provided by the employee’s agency or another agency without charge to the
traveler, that fact including the name of the agency must be indicated on the expense report. Lodging and/or
meals when provided at no cost to the employee by a State agency or third party as part of an assignment are
not reimbursable. If only lodging was provided, meal allowances based on location of lodging may still be
claimed.

Weekend Allowance

Travelers are allowed lodging and meals for weekends when their agencies deem it necessary for them to
bein travel status. An additional reimbursement over and above the per diems may be allowed in
accordance with the traveler’s bargaining agreement if the traveler is 300 miles or more away from home
and official station. This could occur when the agency has a business need for an employee to remain in
travel status over a weekend, or when it is more economical for the State to have the employee remain in
the location (e.g., where the round-trip airfare exceeds the cost of meals and lodging over the weekend).

Miscellaneous Expenses

Only actual, reasonable and necessary business-related expenses will be reimbursed, and such expenses must
be properly indicated and justified on the expense report.

Page 6 of 14



Office of the State Comptroller - Travel Manual

Reimbursable Expenses

Business-related expenses such as:

Telephone calls

Internet connection fees

Baggage transfer and storage expenses
Supplies and materials

VVvVYvY

Nonreimbursable Expenses

Non-business related expenses such as:

» Speeding fines

» Parking tickets

» Laundry

» Entertainment (e.g., theater tickets, in-room movies)
» Other personal charges

Conference Considerations

Whenever possible, agency-sponsored conferences should be arranged at facilities honoring the federal per
diem rates for meals and lodging. The cost of meeting room rentals, equipment, luncheons and breaks is
normally paid directly by the agency. In selecting the conference site, the agency should consider cost,
location and other special requirements. Standard procurement procedures should be followed.

On occasion, travelers must attend conferences sponsored by other organizations at facilities which exceed
the maximum lodging rate. Travelers must obtain prior approval from their agency’s finance offices to
exceed the rate. Agency finance officials, when considering an employee’s request to exceed government
rates, should consider the following:

Available lodging within the rate at a location nearby

Transportation costs saved by staying at the conference site

Late evening or early morning conference events

Whether the attendee is an officer of the sponsoring organization

Whether the attendee is a speaker or is performing other functions essential to the conference

VVVVY

Social activities such as sightseeing and golf outings are considered personal expenses and will not be
reimbursed.

When meals and/or lodgirig are provided as a part of a conference or event, additional reimbursement is not
permitted. If the meals and/or lodging are provided by a third party, there may be ethics considerations that
should be discussed with your agency’s ethics officer before the conference or event takes place.

Foreign Travel
Travel outside the continental United States is reimbursed based on the maximum per diem allowance

established by the U.S. Department of State. The foreign per diem rates are published monthly and are
available on the U.S. Department of State website.

Page 7 of 14



Office of the State Comptroller - Travel Manual

Foreign travel rates provide for lodging costs up to a maximum amount and an allowance for meals and
incidental expenses. Similar to Method 2, the meal per diem is for dinner one night and breakfast the
following day. Travelers are also eligible for an additional per diem for breakfast if they have to leave at
least one hour before their normal work start time the first day, and/or for dinner if they return at least two
hours later than their normal work ending time on the last day of travel. In these cases, the traveler would be
entitled to 20 percent of the foreign meal per diem for breakfast and/or 80 percent for dinner.

Expenses directly related to lodging and meals are included in the foreign per diem allowance; however,
some expenses unique to foreign travel may be reimbursed at the discretion of the agency, such as:

Passport fees

Visa fees

Cost to convert currency
Traveler’s checks fees

Laundry charges for extended stay
Departure taxes

YVVVVVY

Extended Travel

When an employee is in travel status over an extended period of time or makes frequent trips to a single
location, lodging may be obtained at a non-traditional hotel or motel such as an apartment, rooming house,
bed and breakfast, or private residence. Travelers must obtain prior approval from their agency’s finance
offices to obtain reimbursement for such lodging. Documentation must be submitted justifying the value of
the price paid for such lodging, as opposed to the cost of traditional accommodations. Upon submission of a
receipt, the employee may be reimbursed on a monthly basis for the lesser of:

» The monthly rental rate charged for the non-traditional lodging, or
» ‘The receipted per diem amount for lodging in the out-of-town location, multiplied by the number
of overnight stays at the non-traditional lodging during the month.

For example, if the monthly rental amount paid for non-traditional lodging is $500, and the federal per diem
lodging rate at that location is $100, the employee would be reimbursed for the full $500 charged if they stay
overnight at that location five or more nights during the month. However, if the employee stays overnight at
that location for fewer than five nights in that month, the reimbursement for that month is limited to the
number of overnight stays multiplied by the federal per diem lodging rate of $100.

As noted previously under the discussion of the designation of an employee’s official station, when an
employee is in travel status over an extended period of time or makes frequent trips to a single location, there
may be tax reporting obligations on the part of the State, as well as potentially significant tax consequences
for the employee. Please refer to the Guide to Financial Operations Chapter XIII. Section 6 for additional
guidance on the potential tax consequences of an employee being in travel status over an extended period of
time, or making frequent trips to a single location.

Transportation

Travelers should use the most efficient and cost-effective method of transportation available. When choosing
a method of transportation, several factors should be considered:

» Distance being traveled

» Travel time

» Number of travelers

» Number of locations to be visited

Page 8 of 14



Office of the State Comptroller - Travel Manual

» Type of transportation available
> Employee salaries and overtime

Common Carrier

Often times the most efficient and cost-effective method of transportation is using a common carrier such as
a train, bus, taxicab or airplane. This is especially true when traveling between Albany and New York City.
Where possible, travel should be scheduled using NYS travel services contracts and/or coach
accommodations when traveling by commercial air. The contract established by OGS for airline travel must
be used by employees of the Executive Branch agencies. Employees of other branches should obtain the
lowest cost coach accommodations available. The passenger’s portion of the airline ticket or an e-ticket must
be submitted with the expense report. Boarding passes are not acceptable. Employees may only use non-
contract fares when the fare saves $200 or more per round trip, and only after having obtained prior approval
from their agency’s finance offices.

Train travel on Amtrak will be reimbursed at the actual cost up to the current Amtrak government rate,
and the original ticketmust be scanned or attached and included with the expense report.

When a common carrier is available, but a more expensive method is chosen without sufficient justification,
agencies may reimburse only the common carrier rate. Any common carrier tickets should be used within
one year on a future trip and should not be reconciled until the ticket is used. In accordance with the Guide
to Financial Operations Chapter XIII. Section 4.A, in the event that common carrier tickets are not fully
used within one year, the employee should return the ticket to that common carrier for a refund,; this must be
done within one year of the purchase date to receive a refund. Consistent with the OGS Memo dated March
12, 2012, employees may not bulk-purchase tickets using a travel card or procurement card. Employees
should only purchase tickets for anticipated travel events. If a trip is cancelled at the direction of the agency,
the traveler will not be responsible for any costs incurred. If a trip is cancelled for the traveler’s
convenience, they may be responsible for any costs.

Charges for traveling by common carrier between a transportation terminal (e.g., airport, bus or train station)
and home or official station may be incurred and are reimbursable for actual costs. Personal car mileage is
reimbursable in accordance with collective bargaining agreements. The personal vehicle mileage rate for
Management Confidential employees will be consistent with the Governor’s Office of Employee Relations
annual notification to OSCregarding the IRS’s standard mileage rate.

Personal Vehicle

A personal vehicle may be used for State business purposes when a State vehicle or common carrier is not
available, is not cost effective or is otherwise not appropriate (for cxample, there is a need to transport
voluminous files or documents and use of a State vehicle or common carrier is not practical). Mileage
reimbursement rates are determined by the IRS and collective bargaining agreements.

Charges for gasoline, oil, accessories, repairs, depreciation, anti-freeze, towing, insurance and other
expenditures will not be allowed. These are considered operational costs and are covered in the mileage
allowance.

Travelers who are required to use their personal vehicles to transport clients or residents or heavy building or
construction materials will receive additional mileage reimbursements in accordance with their collective
bargaining agreements. The additional mileage reimbursement may be reportable as income to the IRS. For
more information, please refer to the Guide to Financial Operations Chapter XIII, Section 12.

Page 9 of 14



Office of the State Comptroller - Travel Manual

State Vehicle

If available, State vehicles should always be considered when the use of an automobile is required. Gasoline
and other necessary expenses incurred while a State vehicle is being used for business purposes will be
reimbursed. Emergency expenses, if justified, will be reimbursed.

Agencies are responsible for setting policy to address the use and assignment of State vehicles by their
employees.

Rental Vehicle

When the use of a rental vehicle is necessary and prudent, agencies should use the OGS centralized
passenger vehicle rental contract. Information about this contract may be obtained from the agency’s finance
office or the OGS Travel Contracts website. When renting a vehicle for State business, the traveler should
rent in the name of New York State and sign the agreement as an agent for the State. Any gasoline purchases
and other direct costs associated with the vehicle will be reimbursed. Reimbursement for personal car
mileage when using a rental vehicle will not be allowed. Employees who utilize rental vehicles for personal
use must reimburse the State for the cost of any charges incurred as a result of such personal usage.

The OGS Centralized Passenger Vehicle Rental Contract includes Collision Damage Waiver Insurance
{CDW) or Loss Damage Waiver Insurance (LDW) and up to $1M Extended Liability Insurance Coverage.

All accidents must be reported immediately to the local enforcement agency, the employee’s
supervisor, and the rental car vendor. The renter must file a damage claim report with the rental car
vendor.

Travel by Personally Owned Airplane

Authorization by the agency head is required for the use of a traveler’s privately owned plane while on State
business. A liability insurance policy must be currently in force and provide coverage of at least
$1,000,000.00 with the State of New York as a named insured. The insurer must be licensed by the State
Department of Financial Services to conduct business in New York State, and a copy of the policy must
befiled with the agency’s chief fiscal officer.

Travel by privately owned plane will be reimbursed at the lesser of the personal car mileage rate (regardless
of the number of passengers carried) or the published coach fare for each passenger on State business (if
commercial air transportation is available between points of travel).

Additional Transportation Expenses

Toll charges will be reimbursed whether paid in cash or with an EZ Pass issued to the employee. Agencies
may not establish EZ Pass accounts for employees’ personal cars. However, EZ Pass accounts may be
established for State vehicles. Such accounts will be established in the name of New York State. Those
officers and employees who are permitted to utilize State vehicles for personal use must reimburse the State
for the costs of any EZ Pass charges incurred during any personal usage.

All reasonable and necessary parking charges will also be reimbursed. Valet parking fees will only be
reimbursed if it is an unavoidable expense (for example, when the hotel only offers valet parking).

Page 10 of 14



Office of the State Comptroller - Travel Manual

Additionally, reasonable and customary tips for allowable valet parking and taxicab fees will be reimbursed.

Travel Card Program

The State of New York has a Travel Card Program which was created to provide employees with a
mechanism to pay for travel expenses. The travel card is generally available to all employees who are
expected to travel at least once a year as part of their jobs. Applications should be made through
agencyfinance offices. Only appropriate travel expenses may be charged to the card.

Advantages to using the travel card include:

Charges are billed directly to the State

The need for travel advances will be reduced

The agency and State will be able to capture a true picture of travel expenses

Travelers using the card will not need to carry large amounts of cash or use personal credit cards
The program provides automatic business travel accident insurance when transportation is charged
to the card

YVVVVYYVY

Travel cards are to be used to pay only those expenses relating to travel costs incurred when traveling on
official State business. Employees may not use travel cards to make personal purchases, even if they intend
to reimburse the State for those expenses. In addition, travel cards must not be used to pay expenses that are
not travel-related.

A procurement card should be used when making State purchases of goods and services not related to
employee travel. A NET-Card should be used when making State purchases for non-employee travel
expenses.

An expense report must be submitted detailing all expenses including both travel card charges and out-of-
pocket expenses. Agency finance offices will reimburse out-of-pocket expenses and pay the travel card
directly. Expense reports should be submitted within 30 days of the end of the travel event, since they
provide information necessary to reconcile the travel card bill and refute potentially fraudulent charges.
Employees are still required to submit expense reports to account for all expenses even if they miss the 30-
day submission window. Revocation of an individual’s travel card will occur upon repeated delays in the
submission of expense reports. Expense reports must be submitted for all charges whether or not out-of-
pocket expenses were incurred,

Improper or unauthorized charges may result in mandated reimbursement to the agency by the employee,
suspension or loss of privileges related to the fravel card, and/or disciplinary action.

Agencies are responsible for recovering any overpayments or improper charges as well as ensuring the bill is
reconciled comrectly, Agencies may establish policies similar to the controls and accounting for cash
advances. Improper charges may be recovered from an employee’s reimbursement for out-of-pocket
expenses, paychecks or any other monies owed to the employee.

Employees leaving the agency must turn in their travel cards prior to leaving. Agency finance offices
areresponsible for verifying any outstanding charges and canceling an employee’s travel card before
the employee’s final paycheck is issued.

Travel Advances

Page 11 of 14



Office of the State Comptroller - Travel Manual

Agencies should encourage the use of the travel card and are expected to provide a travel card to each
traveler who is expected to travel at least once a year as part of their jobs. This enables travelers to charge
travel expenses directly to the State and avoid the need for advance payments. When use of the travelcard is
not viable, agencies have the discretion to issue a travel advance to the traveler to pay expenses whileon
official State business. The traveler may request a travel advance by submitting an application to their
agency’s finance office. The amount of the advance is limited to what can be reasonably estimated to be the
traveler’s expected business-related expenses.

Agencies must have procedures to ensure timely accounting of travel advances, including timely submission
of expense reports; an employee returns any excess travel advance amount within a reasonable time; and an
employee does not leave the agency’s employment with an outstanding travel advance. If necessary,
recovery of funds may include deductions from the employee’s salary or other monies due him or her.

Receipt Requirements

Travelers must provide receipts with expense reports in accordance with the chart below. Agencies have the
discretion to, on occasion, allow reimbursement of a business-related travel expense if a receipt is misplaced
or illegible, and there is no reason to question the legitimacy of the expense. Also, Agencies may reimburse
expenses for which receipts are not customarily provided (e.g., coin parking meters).

For additional clarification on receipt requirements, please refer to the frequently asked questions

(FAQ’s) for travel.

Expense Type Documentation Required

Charge on the State Travel Card Receipt

Transportation by Common Carrier (e.g Ticket stub if purchase price is printed on the stub; receipt
train, bus, airplane, subway) and ticket stub if purchase price is not printed on the stub
Taxi Receipt

Rental Car Receipt showing return time

Tolls - EZ Pass EZ pass statement with applicable charges indicated
Tolls - Cash Receipt

Gas Receipt

Day Trip Meals - Receipted Receipt

Hotels - Receipted Receipt

Miscellaneous and incidental expenses Receipt

For unreceipted expenses, such as mileage and unreceipted per diems, receipts are not required, but receipts
are required for travel card charges, including those related to meals. Travelers may be required to document
unreceipted expenses in other ways (e.g., the AC-160s and AC-132s).

IRS Requirements

The IRS generally requires tax withholding and W-2 reporting for the following types of travel
reimbursements:

» Per diem amounts paid in excess of the rates allowed by the federal government which are not

supported by receipts
» Meal allowances paid for non-overnight travel or day trips

Page 12 of 14



Office of the State Comptroller - Travel Manual

» Mileage reimbursements in excess of the maximum federal rates

> Reimbursement for expenses incurred for travel to a single location when the job assignment is
realistically expected to last in excess of one year, or does in fact exceed one year. Please refer to
the Guide to Financial Operations Chapter XIII. Section 6 for additional guidance.

» Reimbursement for travel expenses from an employee’s residence to their main place of business
(i.e., the place where the employee works more than any other work location — also knownas the
employee’s tax home). If an employee regularly works in more than one place, the employee’s tax
home is the general area where the employee’s main place of business or work is located. Please
refer to the Guide to Financial Operations Chapter XIII. Section 6 for additional guidance.

Completing expense reports with the correct expense types will allow SFS to automatically generate the
necessary information required by the IRS for reporting taxable payments. Please refer to the Guide to
Financial Operations Chapter XIII. Section 12 for detailed explanations and procedures regarding taxable
travel reimbursements.

Interviews for Employment

For candidates applying for positions in State Service, the appointing officer of an agency may authorize
reimbursement for travel expenses necessarily incurred by candidates attending interviews for positions for
which there is a shortage of qualified candidates, in accordance with State Finance Law Section 203 and 2
NYCRR 8.14. For current State employees, the appointing officer of an agency may authorize
reimbursement for travel expenses necessarily incurred by employees attending interviews for promotional
positions, in accordance with 2 NYCRR 8.1.

e Positions in the competitive class for which there are shortages of qualified candidates shall be
determined by the State Department of Civil Service;

e For positions outside the competitive class, such determination shall be made by the head of the
agency in which the positions are authorized.

Reimbursement for necessary travel expenses will be allowed to candidates who reside over 50 miles from
the place of interview, and in accordance with the rules detailed in this Travel Manual. Expenses may
include transportation, food, and lodging.

Commiissioners and Certain Senior Officials

In accordance with State Finance Law Section 109(5) and Section 24 of Chapter 986 of the Laws of 1984,
Commissioners and certain senior officials are entitled to reimbursement for actual and necessary
transportation expenses and a fixed per diem when in overnight travel status in accordance with the
following schedule:

e $100 per day in New York City and the counties of Erie, Monroe, Nassau, Suffolk and Westchester

e $75 per day for travel to all other locations

The fixed per diem rates (as opposed to the receipted rates set forth in Method 2 described previously)
provide for a flat rate allowance for meals, lodging and incidental expenses regardless of where lodging is
obtained, including lodging with relatives or friends. No receipts are required when using the fixed per diem
rates.

Instead of the fixed per diem rates described above, alternatively, such officials are entitled to reimbursement
of actual and necessary transportation expenses, and for meals and lodging expenses in accordance with
Method 2.

Page 13 of 14



Office of the State Comptroller - Travel Manual

Officials may not combine the use of the fixed per diem rates and the receipted rates on the same overnight
trip. An overnight trip, for per diem purposes, is defined as dinner, lodging and breakfast the following
morning. If an individual has multiple overnights in the same travel event, each overnight is considered its
own trip.

Day Trip Reimbursement

When such an official is in travel status for a portion of a day with no overnight stay, the official is eligible
for a $25 per diem allowance to cover meals and incidental expenses. Alternatively, officials with meal
receipts may be reimbursed up to the receipted (Method 2) reimbursement rates described previously, but
cannot mix the two methods in one trip. Since this reimbursement is a meal allowance, choosing this method
has tax implications. Please refer to the Guide te Financial Operations Chapter X111, Section 4.D for current
meal breakdowns.

Certification of Expense Reports

In addition to the traveler’s certification, all travel expenses by Commissioners and senior officials must be
independently reviewed and certified by an appropriate agency employee as being reasonable and necessary,
and incurred on behalf of the State. In the case of the travel expenses incurred by the head of an agency, the
certifier reviewing the expenses must be someone in a position of authority who is knowledgeable about the
travel rules described in this Travel Manual.

Non-Salaried Public Officers

Non-salaried public officers who are members of boards, commissions, advisory councils, ¢te. established by
law who serve without salary are entitled to reimbursement of actual expenses incurred in the performance of
their official duties. For overnight travel, non-salaried public officers may receive a fixed per diem
allowance of $75 per night, or may use the receipted (Method 2) reimbursement rates described previously.
The fixed per diem rate (as opposed to the receipted rates set forth in Method 2) provides for a flat rate
allowance for meals, lodging and incidental expenses regardless of where lodging is obtained, including
lodging with relatives or friends. No receipts are required when using the fixed per diem rate.

Non-salaried public officers may not combine the use of the fixed per diem rate and the receipted rates on the
same frip.

Day Trip Reimbursement

When such a non-salaried public officer is in travel status for a portion of a day with no overnight stay, the
official is eligible for a $25 per diem allowance to cover meals and incidental expenses. Alternatively,
officials with meal receipts may be reimbursed up to the receipted (Method 2) reimbursement rates described
previously, but cannot mix the two methods in one trip. Since this reimbursement is a meal allowance,
choosing this method has tax implications. Please refer to the Guide to Financial Operations Chapter X111,
Section 4.D for current meal breakdowns.

Page 14 of 14



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
March 14, 2024 BOARD MEETING

Agenda Item A. General Administration
3. Renewal of Existing Line of Credit with Tompkins Community Bank

REPORT:

The Board of Directors of the Ogdensburg Bridge & Port Authority approved a Line of Credit with
Tompkins Trust Company on November 15, 2017. The Line of Credit was renewed on February
11, 2019 by Board approval. In the interim, Tompkins Trust Company became Tompkins
Community Bank. Tompkins Community Bank has agreed to renew the term of the Line of Credit
again, with a revised expiration date of June 28, 2025.

The resolution of February 11, 2019 remains in full force and effect.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that: Steven J. Lawrence, Patricia A. Nisco, or any member of the board of directors
of the Company (an “Authorized Person”) may on behalf of and in the name of the Company or otherwise,
transact with and through Tompkins Trust Company (“Lender”), all such business as he or she (they)
shall deem advisable upon such terms as he or she (they) shall deem proper including, but not limited
to (i) obtaining loans, credits and other financial accommodations; (ii) discounting, selling, assigning,
delivering and negotiating checks, drafts, bills of exchange, acceptances, notes and other writings
containing a promise of, or order for, the payment of money (individually an “ltem” and collectively
“ltems”); (iii) guaranteeing and otherwise becoming contingently liable for obligations of others;
(iv) applying for services or products from Lender (“Services and Products”) including, without limitation,
letters of credit, electronic funds transfers, Internet products, capital markets products, deposit and cash
management products; and (v) pledging, hypothecating, assigning, mortgaging, encumbering, granting
security interests in and otherwise creating liens upon personal property, tangible or intangible
(“Property”), as security for credits and for guarantees and other contingent liabilities. In connection with
any such transaction of business, each Authorized Person has the power and authority on behalf of the
Company to do all such acts and other things as he or she (they) shall deem proper, including but not
limited to (i) signing, drawing, accepting, endorsing, executing and delivering ltems; (ii) executing and
delivering notes, guarantees, assignments, pledges, hypothecations, mortgages, deeds of trust, security
agreements, powers of attorney, indemnifications, receipts, waivers, releases and other instruments,
agreements and documents; (iii) making and receiving delivery of Property; (iv) accepting, receiving,
withdrawing and waiving demands and notices; (v) incurring and paying liabilities, costs and expenses;
and (vi) delegating to one or more people (who may be, but need not be, an Authorized Person) the
power and authority granted to any Authorized Person herein or as set forth in an agreement with respect
to any credit, Service or Product, including the authority to request advances from Lender under one or
more credits with a Lender. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, each Authorized Person has
the power and the authority on behalf of the Company to obtain from Lender from time to time upon such
terms as he or she (they) shall deem proper, credits in such amounts as they deem necessary; and it is
further

RESOLVED, that without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Company hereby specifically
authorizes the modification of that certain line of credit in an amount not to exceed One Million Dollars
($1,000,000.00) entered into between the Company and Lender, the term of which expired on December







28, 2018 (the “Existing Line of Credit") with a new line of credit in an amount not to exceed Five Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00) and a new Term Note in the original principal amount of Five Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00) (collectively, the “Replacement Financing”); and it is further

RESOLVED, that the authority given hereunder shall be deemed retroactive and any and all
signatures, endorsements heretofore executed and all other actions heretofore taken by one or more of
the Company’s officers, members, partners or other persons, employees acting on behalf of the
Company in any capacity (including Authorized Persons), and their delegees, (acting jointly or
separately) are hereby adopted, ratified and confirmed; and be it further

RESOLVED, that the foregoing resolutions shall remain in full force and effect and may be relied
upon by a Lender, notwithstanding the dissolution or termination of existence of the Company or any
change in the identity of, or any modification or termination of any authority of, any Authorized Person,
until a copy of a subsequent resolution revoking or amending them, duly certified by an Authorized
Person of the Company, shall be actually received by the account officer of a Lender responsible for the
obligations of the Company and such Lender shall have had a reasonable time to act thereon; and any
action taken by a Lender prior to such actual receipt and passage of time shall be binding upon the
Company, irrespective of when such resolutions may have been adopted.

—
INITIATOR / PREPARER Patricia Nisco APPROVED BY: Yy, et

MOTION MADE BY Unanimous Yes [ ] No []

SECONDED BY Abstained







OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
MARCH 14, 2024 BOARD MEETING

Agenda ltem A. General Administration
4. Approval of HVAC Service Agreement

REPORT:

The HVAC systems at the Border Station location must adhere to standards as set forth by the GSA lease.

The equipment at the Border Station is manufactured by TRANE. The current maintenance agreement with
TRANE is set to expire.

As TRANE is the manufacturer for the Border Station HVAC, its maintenance and repair would best be

serviced by TRANE. TRANE is an Office of General Services’ (OGS) certified contractor and definitely able
perform these related tasks.

Staff reviewed the details of this maintenance agreement and recommends securing this service from
TRANE.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Director of Operations is hereby authorized and directed to execute a Purchase Order
with TRANE to extend the annual service agreement at the Border Station, a total cost not to exceed
$10,634.00 annually, or $2,658.50 quarterly.

i LA

FTHp A ;
INITIATOR/PREPARER: James D. Chase APPROVED BY: A // {f/ [ ,/ Cltet
MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes 0O No O

SECONDED BY: Abstained By:







OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
APRIL 5, 2024 BOARD MEETING

Agenda Item B. Ogdensburg-Prescott International Bridge
1. Approval of Lease Supplement No. 1 with Mack Global Design. Inc.

REPORT:

Staff has negotiated Lease Supplement No. 1 with Mack Global Design, Inc. for 220 square feet
of office space in Suite 207B of the Bridge Administration Building for a one (1) year period
commencing April 1, 2024 and terminating March 31, 2025 at a rate of $16.52 per square foot
equaling $302.87 per month, $3,634.40 for the one (1) year period, inclusive of utilities.

All other terms and conditions of the original Lease Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect and are hereby ratified and affirmed.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute Lease
Supplement No. 1 with Mack Global Design, Inc. for 220 square feet of office space in Suite
207B of the Bridge Administration Building for a one (1) year period commencing April 1, 2024
and terminating March 31, 2025 at a rate of $16.52 per square foot equaling $302.87 per month,
$3,634.40 for the one (1) year period, inclusive of utilities, and be it;

FURTHER RESOLVED, that all other terms and conditions of the original Lease Agreement
shall remain in full force and effect and are hereby ratified and affirmed.

/[ /)
] J-_—f’;" ; -_'.'-;':,,'/
INITATOR/PREPARER: Anthony Adamczyk APPROVED BY: (4t~ Céﬁ{,{_..(

MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes [ No O

SECONDED BY: Abstained By:







OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
APRIL 5, 2024 BOARD MEETING

Agenda Item B. Ogdensburg-Prescott International Bridge
2. Approval of Lease Supplement No. 4 with Glenda Jones.

REPORT:

Staff has negotiated Lease Supplement No. 4 with Glenda Jones for 292 square feet of office
space in Suite 210 of the Bridge Administration Building for a one (1) year period commencing
April 1, 2024 and terminating March 31, 2025 at a rate of $9.55 per square foot equaling $232.38
per month, $2,788.60 for the one (1) year period, inclusive of utilities.

All other terms and conditions of the original Lease Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect and are hereby ratified and affirmed.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute Lease
Supplement No. 4 with Glenda Jones for 292 square feet of office space in Suite 210 of the
Bridge Administration Building for a one (1) year period commencing April 1, 2024 and
terminating March 31, 2025 at a rate of $9.55 per square foot equaling $232.38 per month,
$2,788.60 for the one (1) year period, inclusive of utilities, and be it;

FURTHER RESOLVED, that all other terms and conditions of the original Lease Agreement shall
remain in full force and effect and are hereby ratified and affirmed.

A7 LA
INITATOR/PREPARER: Anthony Adamezyk APPROVEDBY: ey

MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes [ No O

SECONDED BY: Abstained By:







OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
MARCH 14, 2024 BOARD MEETING

Agenda Item C. Commerce Park Campus
1. Approval of Lease Supplement No. 12 with T-Base Communications USA. Inc.

REPORT:

Staff has negotiated Lease Supplement No. 12 with T-Base Communications USA, Inc. for 4,892
square feet of commercial space in Building 4 at the Commerce Park Campus for a thirteen-
month (13) month base period and two (2), one (1) year option periods commencing March 1,
2024 and terminating March 31, 2025 through March 31, 2027 at the rates outlined in the table
below:

Rental Amount ($)
Time Period per Square Foot Monthly Annually/Period
03/01/2024-03/31/2025 | $6.61 $2,694.68 $35,030.84
04/01/2025-03/31/2026 | $6.87 $2,800.67 $33,608.04
04/01/2026-03/31/2027 | $7.14 $2,910.74 $34,928.88

T-Base Communications USA, Inc. is responsible for its pro-rated share of all utilities.

All other terms and conditions of the original Lease Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect and are hereby ratified and affirmed.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute Lease
Supplement No. 12 with T-Base Communications USA, Inc. for 4,892 square feet of commercial
space in Building 4 at the Commerce Park Campus for a thirteen-month (13) month base period
and two (2), one (1) year option periods commencing March 1, 2024 and terminating March 31,

2025 through March 31, 2027 at the rates outlined in the table below:

Rental Amount ($)
Time Period per Square Foot Monthly Annually/Period
03/01/2024-03/31/2025 | $6.61 $2,694.68 $35.030.84
04/01/2025-03/31/2026 | $6.87 $2,800.67 $33,608.04
04/01/2026-03/31/2027 | $7.14 $2,910.74 $34,928.88

T-Base Communications USA, Inc. is responsible for its pro-rated share of all utilities.

Page 1 of 2







All other terms and conditions of the original Lease Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect and are hereby ratified and affirmed.

’ . 7,'/: -
INITATOR/PREPARER: Anthony Adamczvk APPROVED BY: oy Cltte, «
MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes [ No U
SECONDED BY: Abstained By:

Page 2 of 2






OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
APRIL §, 2024 BOARD MEETING

Agenda Item C. Commerce Park Campus
2. Approval of Lease Agreement with West End Asset Management dba The Stock

Ticker Company.

REPORT:

Staff has negotiated a new Lease Agreement with West End Asset Management dba The Stock
Ticker Company for 500 square feet of warehouse space in Building 1 of the Commerce Park
Campus for a two (2) year period commencing January 1, 2024 and terminating December 31,
2025 at a rate of $8.25 per square foot equaling a total of $343.75 per month, $8,250.00 for the
two (2) year period, inclusive of utilities.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute a new
Lease Agreement with West End Asset Management dba The Stock Ticker Company for 500
square feet of warehouse space in Building 1 of the Commerce Park Campus for a two (2) year
period commencing January 1, 2024 and terminating December 31, 2025 at a rate of $8.25 per
square foot equaling a total of $343.75 per month, $8,250.00 for the two (2) year period, inclusive
of utilities.

INITATOR/PREPARER: Anthony Adameczvk APPROVED BY: /f/ubéy(:; ‘ééﬁ(. A

MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes [0 No O

SECONDED BY: Abstained By:







OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
APRIL 5, 2024 BOARD MEETING

Agenda Item C. Commerce Park Campus
3. Approval of Lease Supplement No. 2 with LiveFast Motors LLC.

REPORT:

Staff has negotiated Lease Supplement No. 2 with LiveFast Motors LLC for 103 square feet of
office space and 490 square feet of reserved parking space at Building 1 of the Commerce Park
Campus for a one (1) year period commencing April 1, 2024 and terminating March 31, 2025 at
a rate of $15.48 per square foot for office space and $2.06 per square foot for reserved parking
space equaling a total of $216.99 per month, $2,603.84 for the one (1) year period, inclusive of
utilities.

All other terms and conditions of the original Lease Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect and are hereby ratified and affirmed.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute Lease
Supplement No. 2 with LiveFast Motors LLC for 103 square feet of office space and 490 square
feet of reserved parking space at Building 1 of the Commerce Park Campus for a one (1) year
period commencing April 1, 2024 and terminating March 31, 2025 at a rate of $15.48 per square
foot for office space and $2.06 per square foot for reserved parking space equaling a total of
$216.99 per month, $2,603.84 for the one (1) year period, inclusive of utilities, and be it;

FURTHER RESOLVED, that all other terms and conditions of the original Lease Agreement shall
remain in full force and effect and are hereby ratified and affirmed.

7/ 7

LA /)
INITATOR/PREPARER:; Anthony Adamczvk APPROVED BY; A V&(" b'chf/C--
MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes [ No [

SECONDED BY: Abstained By:







OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
MARCH 14, 2024 BOARD MEETING

Agenda Item D. Ogdensburg International Airport
1. Approval of T-Hangar Lease Agreement with Frank Richardson.

REPORT:

Staff has negotiated a new Lease Agreement with Frank Richardson for T-Hangar No. 2 at the
Ogdensburg International Airport for a one (1) year period commencing August 15, 2023 and
terminating August 14, 2024 at a rate of $215.00 per month, $1,505.00 for the period August 15,
2023 through March 14, 2024, and $240.00 per month, $1,200.00 for the period March 15, 2024
through August 14, 2024, inclusive of utilities.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute a new
Lease Agreement with Frank Richardson for T-Hangar No. 2 at the Ogdensburg International
Airport for a one (1) year period commencing August 15, 2023 and terminating August 14, 2024
at a rate of $215.00 per month, $1,505.00 for the period August 15, 2023 through March 14,
2024, and $240.00 per month, $1,200.00 for the period March 15, 2024 through August 14, 2024,
inclusive of utilities.

INITATOR/PREPARER: Anthony Adamczyk APPROVEDBY: " [z, ]

MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes [ No O

SECONDED BY: Abstained By:







OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
MARCH 14, 2024 BOARD MEETING

Agenda Item D. Ogdensburg International Airport
2. Approval of T-Hangar Lease Agreement with Keith Weston.

REPORT:

Staff has negotiated a new Lease Agreement with Keith Weston for T-Hangar No. 4 at the
Ogdensburg International Airport for a one (1) year period commencing October 1, 2023 and
terminating September 31, 2024 at a rate of $215.00 per month, $1,075.00 for the period October
1, 2023 through February 29, 2024, and $240.00 per month, $1,680.00 for the period March 1,
2024 through September 31, 2024, inclusive of utilities.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute a new
Lease Agreement with Keith Weston for T-Hangar No. 4 at the Ogdensburg International Airport
for a one (1) year period commencing October 1, 2023 and terminating September 31, 2024 at a
rate of $215.00 per month, $1,075.00 for the period October 1, 2023 through February 29, 2024,
and $240.00 per month, $1,680.00 for the period March 1, 2024 through September 31, 2024,
inclusive of utilities.

INITATOR/PREPARER: Anthony Adamczyvk ~ APPROVED BY: __ LU )N q

MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes 0O No I

SECONDED BY: Abstained By:







OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
MARCH 14, 2024 BOARD MEETING

Agenda Item D. Ogdensburg International Airport
3. Approval of T-Hangar Iease Agreement with Pete Bogardus.

REPORT:

Staff has negotiated a new Lease Agreement with Pete Bogardus for T-Hangar No. 6 at the
Ogdensburg International Airport for a one (1) year period commencing September 1, 2023 and
terminating August 31, 2024 at a rate of $215.00 per month, $1,290.00 for the period September
1, 2023 through February 29, 2024, and $240.00 per month, $1,440.00 for the period March 1,
2024 through August 31, 2024, inclusive of utilities.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute a new
Lease Agreement with Pete Bogardus for T-Hangar No. 6 at the Ogdensburg International Airport
for a one (1) year period commencing September 1, 2023 and terminating August 31, 2024 at a
rate of $215.00 per month, $1,290.00 for the period September 1, 2023 through February 29,
2024, and $240.00 per month, $1,440.00 for the period March 1, 2024 through August 31, 2024,
inclusive of utilities.

/ ; //
INITATOR/PREPARER: Anthony Adamczvk APPROVED BY: / A7 {,1&&/

MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes [J No [

SECONDED BY: Abstained By:







OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
MARCH 14, 2024 BOARD MEETING

Agenda Item D. Ogdensburg International Airport
4. Approval of T-Hangar I ease Asreement with Frank Richardson.

REPORT:

Staff has negotiated a new Lease Agreement with Frank Richardson for T-Hangar No. 10 at the
Ogdensburg International Airport for a one (1) year period commencing August 15, 2023 and
terminating August 14, 2024 at a rate of $215.00 per month, $1,505.00 for the period August 15,
2023 through March 14, 2024, and $240.00 per month, $1,200.00 for the period March 15, 2024
through August 14, 2024, inclusive of utilities.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute a new
Lease Agreement with Frank Richardson for T-Hangar No. 10 at the Ogdensburg International
Airport for a one (1) year period commencing August 15, 2023 and terminating August 14, 2024
at a rate of $215.00 per month, $1,505.00 for the period August 15, 2023 through March 14,
2024, and $240.00 per month, $1,200.00 for the period March 15, 2024 through August 14, 2024,
inclusive of utilities.

v
.rf

!/
[
L

INITATOR/PREPARER: Anthony Adamczyk APPROVEDBY: __ lp5 (Wr

MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes [0 No O

SECONDED BY: Abstained By:







OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
APRIL 5, 2024 BOARD MEETING

Agenda Item E. Port of Ogdensburg
1. Approval of Handling and Storage Agreement with Morton Salt. Inc.

REPORT:

Staff has negotiated a Handling and Storage Agreement with Morton Salt, Inc. for deicing salt
cargo at the Port of Ogdensburg for a period of three (3) years, commencing April 1, 2024 and
terminating March 31, 2027, at the rates provided below:

Service Rate (USD)

Dockage, including Security $0.20 per Gross Registered
during Discharge Tonnage

Wharfage & Receiving $5.65 per ST

Truck Loading & Scaling $2.34 per ST

Storage $0.17 per short ton per Month

Rates are subject to an annual adjustment on the anniversary date of the Agreement in the amount
of (a) the increase in the Consumer Price Index US City Average (1982-1984=100) over the
preceding year, or (b) three percent (3%), whichever is greater.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute a Handling
and Storage Agreement with Morton Salt, Inc. for deicing salt cargo at the Port of Ogdensburg for
a period of three (3) years, commencing April 1, 2024 and terminating March 31, 2027, at the
rates provided below:

Service Rate (USD)

Dockage, including Security $0.20 per Gross Registered
during Discharge Tonnage

Wharfage & Receiving $5.65 per ST

Truck Loading & Scaling $2.34 per ST

Storage $0.17 per short ton per Month







AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that rates are subject to an annual adjustment on the
anniversary date of the Agreement in the amount of (a) the increase in the Consumer Price Index

US City Average (1982-1984=100) over the preceding year, or (b) three percent (3%), whichever
is greater.

INITATOR/PREPARER: Anthony Adamczvk APPROVED BY: _ /% \%M/

MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes [J No O

SECONDED BY: Abstained By:







OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
APRIL 5, 2024, BOARD MEETING

Agenda ltem E. Port of Ogdensburg
2. Port Dock Expansion-Approval of Work Order No. 24-01 with FVD
Engineering Services, S.C.

REPORT:

FVD Engineering Services, S.C. has provided the Authority with Work Order (24-01) agreement to
perform National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) Environmental Assessment (EA) services for the
Terminal and modified dredging disposal location as part of the Channel Deepening Project
Ogdensburg Harbor. The scope of services for this contract will be complete upon finalization of the
drawings and specifications for the optional design.

The NEPA is performed as a task to move towards a MARAD grant agreement. Any work performed
prior to grant agreement is not eligible for reimbursement under MARAD/PIDP. This work will have to
funded solely by the Ogdensburg Bridge & Port Authority.

The Work Order No. 24-01 FVD costs associated with providing these services are

on a Time and Materials basis in order to provide the most fiexibility to move this project forward, with
a total amount not-to-exceed $32,000.00.

FVD will require services from subcontracted firms to provide cultural and historic phase 1A and 1B
services for a cost of $7,150.00.

The total FVD proposal costs requiring Board approval for a cost not to exceed $39,150.00.

Staff recommends approval of this agreement with FVD Engineering Services, S.C.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute a Work Order
Agreement for Work Order No. 24-01 with FVD Engineering Services, S.C. to perform National
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) Environmental Assessment (EA) services for the Terminal and
modified dredging disposal location as part of the Channel Deepening Project Ogdensburg Harbor
for a cost not to exceed $39,150.00.

FURTHER RESOLVED, that:

The Agreement for Professional Engineering Services between Ogdensburg Bridge & Port Authority
and FVD Engineering Services, S.C. for Professional Services for Port of Ogdensburg Dock
Expansion, dated July 2016, shall govern all Work Orders.,

4 .
7 )

7

/,:;.;; )
INITIATOR/PREPARER:  Steve Lawrence APPROVEDBY: _ 7 7 /ﬁ?/ Lﬁbf =
MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes No

SECONDED BY: Abstained By:







2>FVD===

2121 Innovation Court
De Pere, WI 54115-5095
(920) 785-7160

March 28, 2024

Steve Lawrence

Ogdensburg Bridge & Port Authority
1 Bridge Plaza

Ogdensburg NY 13669

Re:  Proposal for Ogdensburg Environmental Assessment Services
Dear Steve Lawrence:

As requested, FVD Engineering Services, S.C. (FVD) is pleased to provide the Ogdensburg Bridge
& Port Authority (Ogdensburg) with this proposal to perform National Environmental Policy Act
(NEPA) Environmental Assessment (EA) services for the Terminal and modified dredging disposal
location as part of the Channel Deepening Project Ogdensburg Harbor, City of Ogdensburg,

St. Lawrence County, New York State Historical Preservation Office. Specific tasks that will be
addressed are described in the attached Scope of Work.

If these documents meet your approval, please indicate your acceptance by signing and returning
the Agreement for Services Work Order No. 24-01 to FVD. If you wish to authorize this work with
a purchase order, please note that the terms and conditions in our Master Agreement for
Services, dated March 22, 2022, superseded the terms of the purchase order.

We look forward to the opportunity to continue to work with you with the execution of this project.
If you have questions regarding our submittal, please contact Scott Skuncik at (401) 236-0361 or
at scott.skuncik@foth.com.

Sincerely,

FVD Engineering Services S.C.

¥

§MK§M h

/o4 XSG
;/ LA N B A e

Scott R. Skuncik Tro;}Gawronski
Client Team Leader Project Manager

cc: Susan Nilson, P.E. — Director, FVD
Lori Kurowski

Enclosure(s)
Scope of Work
Agreement for Services Work Order No. 24-07

pw:\FVD Engineering Services\00160022.10\1000 Budget and Contracts\1100 Client Contracts\PL- Ogdensburg, NEPA Scope_Work Order 24-01.docx



2FVD===

Ogdensburg Port Improvement Project
Environmental Assessment Services
March 28, 2024

Scope of Work

1. Executive Summary

This project scope is to prepare an Environmental Assessment (EA) to meet the requirements of
the Maritime Administration (MARAD) under the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) of
1970. NEPA requires that all federal agencies consider environmental impacts of all actions
that they are considering or undertake and requires agencies to assess the environmental
effects of proposed actions PRIOR to making a decision to move forward. Itis the
understanding of FVD Engineering Services, S.C. (FVD) that a Finding of No Significant Impact
(FONSI) has been issued for the dredging portion of this Ogdensburg Port Improvement and
Dredging project.

FVD intends to prepare an EA for submission under the MARAD NEPA process for the port
improvements and modified dredge disposal location for this project. The EA will include the
scope of the project, identification of historic properties, and is anticipated to display
concurrence with a determination of no adverse effect. This EA will be prepared in order to
provide sufficient evidence and analysis for regulatory agencies to determine that the
improvements proposed at the Port are of no significant environmental impact and an updated
FONSI can be issued. The EA will be done in accordance with regulatory recommendations in
order to expedite the process. FVD will work alongside the agencies to ensure minimal
revisions are required. In accordance with the MARAD guidance provided, FVD will submit a
finalized draft EA for your review.

Upon your review and approval of the draft EA, the regulatory agencies will review and provide
FVD with initial comment. FVD intends to work with the agencies to ensure these comments
are addressed clearly, requiring no additional revisions. In order to do this, FVD anticipates up
front coordination as well as meeting with the agencies to finalize the EA.

In addition to the time required to research and write the EA, this project also includes working
with MARAD to coordinate with the State Historic Preservation Officers (SHPO), any Tribal
Historic Preservation Officers (THPO), as well as a Section 106 Archaeological survey to ensure
compliance with federal requirements as part of MARAD's NEPA requirements.

pw:\FVD Engineering Services\00160022.10\1000 Budget and Contracts\1100 Client Contracts\PL- Ogdensburg, NEPA Scope_Work Order 24-01.docx



2. Scope of Services

FVD will provide the services as defined below:

Task 1 — EA Drafting

FVD will prepare the EA in accordance with regulatory recommendations in order to expedite the
process. The EA will include topics such as:

+ Introduction:
s Project Location
= Proposed Project Description
s Purpose and Need
e Existing Conditions
+ Alternatives Considered
s Proposed Action
= No Action Alternative
m Other Action Alternative(s)
= Alternative(s) Considered and Dismissed
+ Affected Environment and Environmental Consequences
» Resources Not Considered in this Environmental Assessment
= Resources Considered in this Environmental Assessment
Socioeconomic Effects
Indirect and Cumulative Impacts
Mitigation Measures, as Necessary
Agency Coordination and Public Involvement
Conclusions

L I IR B 2K

Deliverable:
o Draft EA

Task 2 — Agency Coordination

Coordination with MARAD, New York State Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation
(NYS OPRHP), SHPO, New York Department of Environmental Conservation (NYDEC), and
United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) will be required as part of the NEPA process. It
is assumed that a virtual pre-coordination meeting will be held with MARAD prior to drafting the
EA. During this meeting, MARAD and FVD will affirm the process for agency coordination and
public participation. Itis assumed that a class 1 publication in a local paper will satisfy the
public involvement requirement under NEPA. Based on a preliminary desktop review of the
area, it is assumed that minimal coordination is required as there are assumed to be no
significant cultural, archeological, or threatened or endangered species in the project area of the
terminal and modified dredge proposal location. The area is not in a State Regulated Wetland
Checkzone and there are no National Wetlands Inventory wetlands in the project area.
Therefore, it is assumed that a preliminary consultation will be needed with NYDEC, but a
wetland delineation is not included, at this time, in this Scope of Work. FVD will prepare THPO
and SHPO letters, as required, to satisfy consultation requirements. Field visits with
THPO/SHPO and phase 2 surveys are not included in this Scope of Work.

pw:\FVD Engineering Services\00160022.10\1000 Budget and Contracts\1100 Client Contracts\PL- Ogdensburg, NEPA Scope_Work Order 24-01.docx



FVD will also prepare a desktop review of state and federal threatened or endangered species in
the project area. It is assumed that a desktop review and summary of findings memo will be
sufficient for NYDEC and USFWS coordination. If additional coordination is needed with
MARAD, NYS OPRHP, SHPO, NYDEC, and USFWS, a separate Scope of Work will be provided.

Deliverables:
+ Pre-coordination meeting

« Phase 1A/Phase 1B archaeological survey
+ Preliminary wetland consultation with NYDEC wetland permitting section
+ Desktop threatened or endangered review and coordination with NYDEC and USFWS

Task 3 - Final EA

FVD will present a draft EA to Ogdensburg for one round of comments. FVD will then provide
MARAD with the draft EA for their review and comment. It is assumed that MARAD will provide
one round of comments to FVD. FVD will then prepare a final EA for MARAD to complete the
FONSI.

Deliverables:
¢ Final EA

3. Client Responsibilities

Ogdensburg is responsible for the following information and activities:
+ Site permission for FVD and its subcontractors to access the site.
« Participation in agency meetings.
¢ Project funds.
¢ Permitting.

+ Newspaper publication fees.

4. Project Team

Troy Gawronski, of FVD, will be the Project Manager for this work. He will be supported by
Amanda Minks as the NEPA Coordinator, with technical support from Gwen Clendenning and
Lupe Gutierrez. FVD will partner with Morton Archaeological Research Services to complete
Section 106 aspects of the EA.

5. Schedule

FVD proposes to complete the project according to the following schedule, unless
circumstances beyond our control require modification of the schedule.

pw:AFVD Engineering Services\00160022.10\1000 Budget and Contracts\1100 Client Contracts\PL- Ogdensburg, NEPA Scope_Wark Order 24-01.docx



S121/24
Confirm no field
Investigetion needed
5/16/24
Initial SHPO and
NYDEC coardination

4
NEPA

sf2124 5118
. Grant Executed

Client Complete

Prediminary EA
Package

6. Work Performed by Others

FVD will work with subcontracted firms to provide cultural and historic phase 1A and 1B
services.

e Section 106 support costs: $7,150

7. Exclusions

The following items are excluded from the scope of work:

In-person agency meetings

Newspaper publication fees

Site investigations such as surveys, soil sampling, or geotechnical borings
In-field environmental testing, endangered species study, or remediation
Wetland delineations

Field investigations

Hydraulic modeling and analysis

Bathymetric survey

Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment

Engineering and design services

Permitting services

L K IR R R K R B R R 2NN 2

Any and all work beyond the scope of this proposal shall be deemed extra work and contracted for
prior to the commencement of such work.

pw:\FVD Engineering Services\00160022.10\1000 Budget and Contracts\1100 Client Contracts\PL- Ogdensburg, NEPA Scope_Work Order 24-01.docx



Assumptions

The following assumptions are in effect:

L 4

*

9.

It is assumed that one round of agency feedback will be needed for the EA.

No field surveys are needed for threatened or endangered species consultation.

The client will ensure that FVD and necessary agency representatives will have access to
the project area, including access to private property, as required.

It is assumed that approximately four upland acres may require Phase IB field
investigation. FVD assumes that this will be in the form of hand-excavated shovel tests
at the standard interval of 16 tests/acre or 15m/50ft.

The Phase IB investigations may require a crew of two persons for approximately 3-4
days, with lodging, per diem, mileage, and tolls.

Consultation with the NYS OPRHP, SHPO, THPO, NYDEC, and USFWS will be minimal.

It is assumed that there will be minimal artifact recovery (less than 50 items) and that no
sites identified will be documented during the Phase IB investigations. FVD assumes
that no further archaeological work will be required.

Monthly virtual meetings are anticipated for up to nine months of the NEPA process.

In light of recent global events, labor shortages or supply chain disruptions resultant
from epidemic or pandemic events (e.g., the Covid-19 outbreak) are specifically to be
considered grounds constituting a force majeure condition. Labor shortages and
inefficiencies, delays, escalation, or cost impacts resulting from labor shortages or
supply chain disruptions associated with such an event shall be considered grounds for
a changed condition event and shall afford FVD the opportunity for schedule and cost
relief associated with such an event notwithstanding any express language in the
Agreement to the contrary.

Fee

A fee of $32,000 is proposed on a Time and Materials basis in order to provide the most
flexibility to move this project forward. This fee will allow us to flex costs for various
components of the EA.

pw:\FVD Engineering Services\00160022.10\1000 Budget and Contracts\1100 Client Contracts\PL- Ogdensburg, NEPA Scope_Work Order 24-07.docx



ENGINEERING
‘)Fv ety AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES

Fomtied ke ey WORK ORDER No. 24-01
Project Title: = Environmental Assessment Services FVD Project Number: 160022.10
CLIENT Project Number:
(If applicable)

This Work Order (in addition to and subject to the conditions contained in the Master Agreement for Services dated
March 22, 2022), (hereinafter "Work Order”), is made and entered into this 28th day of March, 2024, by and between
FVD ENGINEERING SERVICES, S.C. (hereinafter “Consultant”} and 0GDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY,
{hereinafter “Client”), for the services described under the Scope of Services (the “Services”).

Client: Ogdensburg Bridge & Port Authority
Address: 1 Bridge Plaza, Ogdensburg, NY 13669
Phone No: (315) 393-4080 Email Address: _slawrence@ogdensport.com

Scope of Services: Client hereby agrees to retain Consuitant to perform the following Services:

Services to be in accordance with the Scope of Work dated March 28, 2024, which is attached and incorporated into the Work
Order by reference herein.

m Services shall be performed according to the following schedule:
See attached Scope of Work dated March 28, 2024.

In consideration of these Services, the Client agrees to pay Consultant compensation as follows:
[J Lump-Sum in the amount of $ .00
] Unit Cost/Time Charges (Standard Rates) with a total amount not-to-exceed $ .00
[] Unit Cost/Time Charges (Standard Rates) for an estimated cost of § .00

Other as stated here: See attached Scope of Work dated March 28, 2024.

Special Conditions (if any):

Entire Agreement: This Work Order, along with other approved project-specific Work Orders, together with and subject to the
Master Agreement for Services referenced above, constitutes the entire understanding between the parties with respect to
the subject matter hereof. This Work Order may be modified by subsequent written addenda mutually agreeable by both
parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is accepted on the date first written above, subject to the terms and conditions
above stated and the provisions set forth herein.

OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY FVD ENGINEERING SERVICES, S.C.
Signed: Signed: 5 otk K S ‘EI .
Name (printed): Name (printed): Scott R. Skuncik
Title: Title: Client Team Leader
Date: Date: 3-28-2024
Signed: N e It
Name (printed): Susan Nilson, P.E.
Title: Director
Date: 3-28-2024

pw:\FVD Engineering Services\00160022.10\1000 Budget and Contracts\1100 Client Contracts\PL- Ogdensburg, NEPA Scope_Work Order 24-01.docx






OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
MARCH 14, 2024, BCARD MEETING

Agenda Item H. Other Such Matters
1. Approval of Contract with C&S Companies.

REPORT:

C&S Companies has submitted a proposal to provide project architectural,
engineering and design services for the construction of a 15,000 square
foot Child Care facility on the Commerce Park Campus in Ogdensburg New
York. The Child Care Facility will be designed to provide approximately
125 child care slots which will also serve for testing and remedial plans
to benefit children, parents and businesses in the area.

The cost to provide these services is as follows:

Programming / Schematic $90,000
Design Development $110,000
Construction Documents / Bidding $223,000
TOTAL A/E $423,000

The Child Care Initiative met on February 29, 2024 to review the C&S
Companies engineering proposal. The Child Care Committee made a
recommendation to the full Board of Directors to pass a resolution
approving the C&S Companies architectural, engineering and design services
proposal of the not to exceed amount of $423,000.

Staff recommends approval of this agreement with C&S Companies.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to
execute a contract with C&S Companies at a cost not to exceed $423,000 to
provide project architectural, engineering and design services for the
construction of a 15,000 square foot Child Care facility on the Commerce
Park Campus in Ogdensburg New York.

INITIATOR/PREPARER: Steve Lawrence APPROVED BY:

MOTION MADE BY: UNANIMOUS: YES O NO O

SECONDED BY: ABSTAINED BY:







CaS

COMPANIES

February 14, 2024

Steve Lawrence, Executive Director
Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority
1 Bridge Plaza

Ogdensburg New York

Re: Proposed Child Care Center
File: 393.MKT

Dear Steve:

C&S Engineers Inc. is pleased to present this cost proposal for the design and construction administration
of your proposed Child Care Center in the OBPA park.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

Generally, the project consists of the Scope of Work outlined below:

As we understand, the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority would like to construct a 15,000 square
foot Child Care facility on the Commerce Park Campus in Ogdensburg New York. The Center will be
designed to provide 125 actual child care slots which will also serve for testing and remedial plans to
benefit children, parents and businesses in the area. We perceive the building to be a (1) story wood
framed structure. The project will also include but not limited to all site related features such as parking
lots, sidewalks & landscaping. We are also assuming that certain elements within the facility and the
playground will be designed for children with disabilities.

SCOPE OF SERVICES:
Considering the above Scope of Work, C&S's Scope of Services are as follows:

Proaramming / Schematic Phase:

e Site / Civil:
« Coordinate having a topographic / utility survey completed along with infiltration (percolation)
test holes for storm water design.

e Building Architecture and Engineering:
» Review the short and long term goals and needs with key stakeholders from OBPA and The
ARC of Jefferson-St. Lawrence.
» Facilitate a visioning / brainstorming session to clearly define the project goals and present
examples of comparable projects.
» Provide up to (2) Concept plans of the proposed center.

@ www.cscos.com R, (315) 455-2000 4 contactus@cscos.com (8 200 Washington Street, Suite 4028, Watertown, NY 13601



OBPA Child Care Center
February 14, 2024

Page 2

Develop a site analyses to determine options to integrate parking, site circulation, outdoor
play and learning environments.

Perform a Preliminary Code review based upon the New York State family of Codes,
including but not limited to Office of Children and Family Services (OCFS) and Americans w/
Disabilities Act (ADA).

Facilitate a preliminary concept design workshop to review, discuss and refine the previous
options

Further develop the approved Concept Plan for the child development center, integrating
special service children with special needs.

Assist the owner in developing the Preliminary Architectural Feasibility Report for Rural
Development (RD 1942-A).

Design Development / Construction Documents Phase:

o Site/Civil:

Site plans depicting the full scope of work

Review the Rural Development Environmental Guide and provide an environmental report.
SEQRA and Long EAF

Site Plan, Grading, Landscape and Utility Plans

Site Lighting Plan

SWPPP Plan

Site Details

e Building Architecture and Engineering:

Continue programming efforts already on-going to finalize building layout.
Comprehensive Cost Estimate at completion of DD and 90% of CD
Provide Final Drawings including information as listed below:

1. Architectural:

a.  Floor Plans: The plans will be dimensioned with room names and room numbers
and indicate areas of built-in millwork.

b.  Floor Finish Plans: The plans will indicate the flooring patterns, call out flooring
materials and locate floor transitions.

c.  Reflected Ceiling Plans: The plans will indicate ceiling types, ceiling finishes, and
light fixture and diffuser locations.

d.  Finish Schedule/Material Finish Legend Specification: Provide a schedule of

finishes.

e. Interior Elevations & Details: Dimensioned interior wall elevations and details, with
materials and finishes noted. All materials and finishes will be tagged/ called out
on drawings.

f. Door and Window Schedule: Provide schedules, sizes and details of window and
doors.

@ WWW.CSCOS.COmM % (315) 455-2000 contactus@cscos.com (® 200 Washington Street, Suite 402B, Watertown, NY 136071



OBPA Child Care Center
February 14, 2024
Page 3

Bidding Phase:

g.  Exterior Elevations and Sections: The plan will provide dimensioned proposed
exterior wall elevations for the entire facility, and provide wall sections where
appropriate. All materials and finishes shall be called out on the drawings.

h.  Coordinate all details and finishes with Owner.

Structural

a. Foundation Plan, details and sections
b.  Building framing plans and details

¢.  Roof framing plans

Plumbing
a.  Plans and riser diagrams
b.  Fixture Schedules

Electrical

a.  Interior Lighting Plan & Lighting Schedules

b.  Power Plan Branch Circuits to Mechanical Equipment
¢.  Communications/Data Plan

Mechanical
a.  Heating Ventilation & Air Conditioning plans
b. Mechanical details and schedules

NYS Energy Conservation Code Compliance Certification.

Deliverables to include:

a.  Program / Schematic Design 30% submission

b.  Design Development 60% and 90% CD submission.

c.  Signed and Sealed Contract Documents (Construction Drawings and Project
Manual) for advertised bidding (100%) submission

Bi-weekly phone/WebEx design meetings to review progress.

In-person review meetings with Client at submission milestones.

e Assist in solicitation of contractors thru advertised public bid process. Packaged as one prime
contract for General Construction.

Respond

Electronic distribution of bid documents to owner and local Builders Exchanges.

to bidder questions with written addenda and any required supplemental drawings.

Conduct a pre-bid walk thru with the contractors
Prepare a bid tabulation sheet
Review bids received to determine technical responsiveness and bidder experience

and qualification to perform the work.

@ WWW.CSCOS.com

% (315) 455-2000 3 contactus@cscos.com (® 200 Washington Street, Suite 4028, Watertown, NY 13601



OBPA Child Care Center
February 14, 2024

Page 4

Assist the Owner with the selection of the best qualified Bidder.
Provide written recommendation to owner for award of contract.

Construction Administration Phase:

Review contractor's bonds and insurances.

e Review and certify contractor's schedule of values.

e Draft and execute owner/Contractor AIA agreement.

e Attend pre-construction meeting (at site) with Owner, Resident Project Representative (RPR) and
Contractor. Meeting minutes by (RPR).

e One review for each shop drawing submittal.

Periodically observe the contractor's activities with regard to compliance with contract
specifications and drawings (once to twice a month). Attend job meeting (at site) with Owner,
RPR and Contractor. Meeting minutes by (RPR).

s Provide job clarifications and field directives as necessary.

e Assist in developing modifications and change orders to the contract where necessary whether
the modifications are developed by the engineer, the owner, or result from claims submitted by
the contractor. All change orders shall be approved by owner prior to proceeding with said
work.

e Review certificates for payment and authorize payment for work completed less retainage.

e Conduct a final walk thru with owner and RPR and distribute a punch list to the contractor and
copy owner.

e One final inspection of completed punch list items.

e Review close out paperwork including but not limited to Substantial Completion, Release of
Liens and Warranty information.

ASSUMPTIONS:

Site survey (topographic/utility) are included and shall be performed by a sub consultant.

Cost Estimating is included.

Furniture, fixture, and equipment (FF&E) design is Not included, but we will assist with selection
thru a specific vendor under State Contract pricing.

Playground design is not included, but we will assist with selection thru a specific vendor under
State Contract pricing.

Site subdivision survey is not required or included.

Geotechnical investigation is assumed as not being necessary at this point.

Existing utilities (water, power, gas, sewer, etc.) are assumed to be sufficient for proposed
development and no major upgrades to services are included.

Re-design to accommodate value engineering requests is not included.

All approval and permit related fees are by the Owner.

It is assumed that sprinklers are not required and design services for such have not been
included.

As we understand the owner will retain a Resident Project Representative (RPR or Clerk of the
Works) to monitor daily or weekly progress and conduct / document bi-weekly progress
meetings.

@ WWW.CSC0OS.ComM % (315) 455-2000 1 contactus@cscos.com @ 200 Washington Street, Suite 402B, Watertown, NY 13601



OBPA Child Care Center
February 14, 2024

Page 5
SCHEDULE:

The design schedule is anticipated to be as follows:
February Contract Execution / Notice to Proceed (NTP)
March 2024 Programming / Schematic
April-May 2024 Schematic Design
May-June 2024 Design Development
July-September 2024 Construction Documents
October 2024 Bidding

MWBE / SDVOB / DBE Projected Utilization *:

MBE (electrical) 13%
WBE (structural/mech) 15%
SDVOB (estimating) 3.5%
DBE (civil) 10.5%

*Percentages are based upon only the A/E fee. Land surveying could contribute to either WBE or DBE.

@ www.cscos.com Q, (315) 455-2000 B contactus@cscos.com (@ 200 Washington Street, Suite 4028, Watertown, NY 13601



OBPA Child Care Center
February 14, 2024
Page 6

FEE:

We propose to provide the Architectural / Engineering services associated with this project for a lump
sum fee of $423,000 which includes direct expenses. We have priced our professional services for this
project as competitively as possible. Our goal is to deliver excellent professional services throughout the
project while maintaining a reasonable funding stream to achieve a successful project. If the Scope of
Service changes, this amount may require revision. However, no additional amount will be expended
without your prior authorization.

Programming / Schematic $90,000
Design Development $110,000
Construction Documents / Bidding $223,000
TOTALA/E $423,000
Topographic / Utility Survey $7,050
Infiltration Testing $4,500
Construction Administration $155,000

This proposal, including the attached Terms and Conditions, will become an agreement upon your
acceptance, as acknowledged below. Your acceptance will constitute authorization to proceed on this
project.

If you have any questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,
C&S ARCHITECTS, ENGINEERS, &
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT, LLC

Patrick J. Currier, Sr. RA
Managing Architect

Cc

Anthony Fiorentino Sr., C&S
Karin Blackburn, OBPA

*C&S Architects, Engineers, & Landscape Architect, LLC is our primary architectural practice; however, C&S Engineers, Inc.
will be the contracting entity

@ WWW.CSCOS.com Q:) (315) 455-2000 1 contactus@cscos.com @ 200 Washington Street, Suite 402B, Watertown, NY 13601



EXHIBIT “A”
TERMS & CONDITIONS (Design and Construction Phases)

These Terms and Conditions govern the performance by or through
Architect of the Scope of Services set forth in the letter part of this
Agreement. Capitalized terms used herein, unless otherwise defined,
shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the letter and/or scope of
services. Owner and Architect agree as follows:

1.01 Basic Agreement

Architect shall provide, or cause to be provided, the services set
forth in the letter part of this Agreement, and Owner shall pay Architect
for such Services as set forth in Section 2.01.

2.01 Payment Procedures

A. Terms of Payment. Refer to the letter part of this Agreement
between Owner and Architect for the method of payment to Architect.

B. Preparation of Invoices. Architect will prepare a monthly
invoice in accordance with Architect’s standard invoicing practices and
submit the invoice to Owner.

C. Payment of Invoices. Invoices are due and payable within
30 days of receipt. If Owner fails to make any payment due Architect
for services and expenses within 30 days after receipt of Architect’s
invoice, the amounts due Architect will be increased at the rate of 1.5%
per month (or the maximum rate of interest permitted by law, if less)
from said thirtieth day. In addition, Architect may, without liability,
after giving seven days written notice to Owner, suspend services under
this Agreement until Architect has been paid in full all amounts due for
services, expenses, and other related charges. Payments will be credited
first to interest and then to principal. In addition, Owner agrees to pay
all expenses incurred by Architect as a result of Owner’s failure to fulfill
its obligations under this Agreement, including but not limited to, costs,
disbursements, and attorney’s fees.

D. Payment upon Termination. In the event of termination of
Architect's services by Owner, Architect will be paid for Basic Services
rendered to date of termination in accordance with the method of
payment defined in the letter part of this Agreement except that under
the lump sum method, the adjusted fee shall be determined by
proportioning the stipulated amount to reflect the percentage of
completion of the Project, as mutually agreed to by Owner and
Architect. Architect will also be paid for additional services rendered to
date of termination in accordance with the method of payment defined in
the letter part of this Agreement.

3.01 Additional Services

A. If authorized by Owner, or if required because of changes in
the Project, Architect shall furnish services in addition to those set forth
in the letter part of this Agreement.

B. Owner shall pay Architect for such additional services as
follows: For additional services of Architect’s employees engaged
directly on the Project an amount equal to the cumulative hours charged
to the Project by each class of Architect’s employees times standard
hourly rates for each applicable billing class; plus reimbursable expenses
and Architect’s consultants’ charges, if any.

4.01 Owner’s Responsibilities

Owner shall perform the following in a timely manner so as not to delay
the services of Architect under this Agreement. Owner shall be
responsible for, and Architect may rely upon, the accuracy and
completeness of all reports, data and other information furnished
pursuant to this paragraph. Architect may use such reports, data and
information in performing or furnishing services under this Agreement.

A. Designate in writing a person to act as Owner's
representative with respect to the services to be rendered under this

Agreement. Such person shall have complete authority to transmit
instructions, receive information, interpret and define Owner's policies
and decisions with respect to Architect's services for the Project.
Architect shall not rely on directions from anyone outside the scope of
that person’s authority as set forth in written delegations. Directions and
decisions made by the Owner’s representatives shall be binding on the
Owaner.

B. Provide all criteria and full information as to Owner's
requirements for the Project, including design objectives and constraints;
space, capacity, and performance requirements; flexibility and expan-
dability; and any budgetary limitations; and furnish copies of all design
and construction standards which Owner will require to be included in
the Drawings and Specifications.

C. Advise Architect of the identity and scope of services of
any independent consultants employed by Owner to perform or furnish
services in regard to the Project, including, but not limited to, Construc-
tion Management, Cost Estimating, Project Peer Review, Value
Engineering, and Constructability Review.

D. Assist Architect by placing at Architect's disposal all
available information pertinent to the Project including previous reports
and any other data relative to design or construction of the Project.

E. Furnish to Architect, as required for performance of
Architect's Basic Services (except to the extent provided otherwise in
Section 1.01) the following:

1. Data prepared by or services of others including,
without limitation, borings, probings, subsurface explorations and
hydrographic surveys at or contiguous to the site, laboratory tests
and inspections of samples, materials, and equipment;

2. Appropriate professional interpretations of all of the
foregoing;

3. Environmental assessments, audits, investigations and
impact statements, and other relevant environmental or cultural
studies as to the Project, the site and adjacent areas;

4. Property, boundary, easement, right-of-way, topographic
and utility surveys;

5. Property descriptions;
6. Zoning, deed and other land use restrictions; and

7. Other special data or consultations not covered in
Section 3.01; all of which Architect may use and rely upon in
performing services under this Agreement.

F.  Arrange for access to and make all provisions for Architect
and any necessary equipment to enter upon public and private property
as required for Architect to objectively and independently perform
services under this Agreement.

G. Provide surveys to establish reference points for construction
(except to the extent provided in Section 1.01.)

H. Examine all studies, reports, sketches, drawings,
specifications, proposals and other documents presented by Architect,
obtain advice of an attorney, insurance counselor and other consultants
as Owner deems appropriate for such examination and render in writing
decisions pertaining thereto within a reasonable time so as not to delay
the service of Architect.

I Furnish approvals and permits from all governmental
authorities having jurisdiction over the Project and such approvals and
consents from others as may be necessary for completion of the Project.

Portions of this document have been taken from EJCDC E-520 Short Form Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services
Copyright© 2002 National Society for Professional Engineers for EICDC. All rights reserved.



EXHIBIT “A”
TERMS & CONDITIONS (Design and Construction Phases)

1. Provide such accounting, independent cost estimating and
insurance counseling services as may be required for the Project, such
legal services as Owner may require or Architect may reasonably
request with regard to legal issues pertaining to the Project including any
that may be raised by Contractor(s), such auditing service as Owner may
require to ascertain that Contractor(s) are complying with any law, rule,
regulation, ordinance, code or order applicable to their furnishing and
performing the work.

K. If Owner designates a person to represent Owner at the site
who is not Architect or Architects agent or employee, the duties,
responsibilities and limitations of authority of such other person and the
affect thereof on the duties and responsibilities of Architect will be set
forth in an exhibit that is to be identified, attached to, and made a part of
this Agreement before such services begin.

L. If more than one prime contract is to be awarded for
construction, materials, equipment and services for the entire Project,
designate a person or organization to have authority and responsibility
for coordinating the activities among the various prime contractors.

M. Furnish to Architect data or estimated figures as to Owner's
anticipated costs for services to be provided by others for Owner (such
as services pursuant to paragraphs I through L inclusive) so that
Architect may make the necessary findings to support opinions of
probable Total Project Costs.

N. Attend the pre-bid conference, bid opening, preconstruction
conferences, construction progress and other job-related meetings; and
substantial completion inspections and final payment inspections.

0. Give prompt written notice to Architect whenever Owner
observes or otherwise becomes aware of any constituent of concern or
any development that affects the scope or timing of Architect's services,
or any defect or non-conformance in the work of any Contractor.

P. Require Contractor(s) to name Architect as an additional
insured on all Contractor’s Liability Insurance Policies.

Q. Provide services of an independent testing laboratory to
perform all inspections, tests and approvals of samples, materials, and
equipment required by the Contract Documents, or to evaluate the
performance of materials, equipment, and facilities of Owner prior to their
incorporation into the Work with appropriate professional interpretations
thereof.

R. Place and pay for advertisement for Bids in appropriate
publications.
S. Inform Architect in writing of any specific requirements of

safety or security programs that are applicable to Architect, as a visitor
to the Site.

T. Furnish, or direct Architect to provide, Additional Services
as stipulated in Section 3.01.

u. Except as provided in paragraph T, bear all costs incident
to compliance with the requirements of this Section 4.01.
5.01 Termination

A. The obligation to provide further services under this
Agreement may be terminated:

1. For cause,

a. By either party upon 30 days written notice in
the event of substantial failure by the other party to
perform in accordance with the Agreement’s terms through
no fault of the terminating party.

b. By Architect:

1) upon seven days written notice if
Architect believes that Architect is being requested
by Owner to furnish or perform services contrary to
Architect’s  responsibilities as a  licensed
professional; or

2) upon seven days written notice if the
Architect’s services for the Project are delayed or
suspended for more than 90 days for reasons beyond
Architect’s control.

3)  Architect shall have no liability to
Owner on account of such termination.

¢.  Notwithstanding  the  foregoing,  this
Agreement will not terminate as a result of a substantial
failure under paragraph 5.01.A.1.a if the party receiving
such notice begins, within seven days of receipt of such
notice, to correct its failure and proceeds diligently to cure
such failure within no more than 30 days of receipt of
notice; provided, however, that if and to the extent such
substantial failure cannot be reasonably cured within such
30 day period, and if such party has diligently attempted to
cure the same and thereafter continues diligently to cure
the same, then the cure period provided for herein shall
extend up to, but in no case more than, 60 days after the
date of receipt of the notice.

2. For convenience, by Owner effective upon the
receipt of notice by Architect.

B. The terminating party under paragraphs 5.01.A.1 or
5.01.A.2 may set the effective date of termination at a time up to 30 days
later than otherwise provided to allow Architect to demobilize personnel
and equipment from the Project site, to complete tasks whose value
would otherwise be lost, to prepare notes as to the status of completed
and uncompleted tasks, and to assemble Project materials in orderly
files.

6.01 Controlling Law

This Agreement is to be governed by the law of the state of the
state in which the project is located without regard to any conflict of
laws provisions, which may apply the laws of other jurisdictions. It is
further agreed that any legal action between the Owner and Architect
arising out of this Agreement or the performance of the services within
New York State shall be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in
Onondaga County, New York.

7.01 Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries

A. Owner and Architect each is hereby bound and the partners,
successors, executors, administrators, and legal representatives of Owner
and Architect (and to the extent permitted by paragraph 7.01.B the
assigns of Owner and Architect) are hereby bound to the other party to
this Agreement and to the partners, successors, executors,
administrators, and legal representatives (and said assigns) of such other
party, in respect of all covenants, agreements, and obligations of this
Agreement.

B. Neither Owner nor Architect may assign, sublet, or transfer
any rights under or interest (including, but without limitation, moneys

Portions of this document have been taken from EJCDC E-520 Short Form Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services
Copyright© 2002 Nationa! Society for Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.



EXHIBIT “A”
TERMS & CONDITIONS (Design and Construction Phases)

that are due or may become due) in this Agreement without the written
consent of the other, except to the extent that any assignment, subletting,
or transfer is mandated or restricted by law. Unless specifically stated to
the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will
release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under
this Agreement.

8.01 General Considerations

A. The standard of care for all professional architecture and
related services performed or furnished by Architect under this
Agreement will be the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the
subject profession practicing under similar circumstances at the same
time and in the same locality. Architect makes no warranties, express or
implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, in connection with
Architect’s services. Architect and its consultants may use or rely upon
the design services of others, including, but not limited to, contractors,
manufacturers, and suppliers.

B. Architect shall not at any time supervise, direct, or have
control over any contractor’s work, nor shall Architect have authority
over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or
procedures of construction selected or used by any contractor, for safety
precautions and programs incident to a contractor’s work progress, nor
for any failure of any contractor to comply with laws and regulations
applicable to contractor’s work.

C. Architect npeither guarantees the performance of any
contractor nor assumes responsibility for any contractor’s failure to
furnish and perform its work in accordance with the contract between
Owner and such contractor.

D. Architect shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions
of any contractor, subcontractor, or supplier, or of any contractor’s
agents or employees or any other persons (except Architect’s own
employees) at the Project site or otherwise furnishing or performing any
of construction work; or for any decision made on interpretations or
clarifications of the construction contract given by Owner without
consultation and advice of Architect.

E. All design documents prepared or furnished by Architect are
instruments of service, and Architect retains an ownership and property
interest (including the copyright and the right of reuse) in such
documents, whether or not the Project is completed. Such documents
are not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by Owner or
others in extensions of the facility beyond that now contemplated or on
any other facility. Any reuse by Owner or others without specific
written verification or adaptation by Architect for the specific purpose
intended will be at user's sole risk and without liability or legal exposure
to Architect, or to Architect's independent professional associates or
consultants, and Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Architect and
Architect's independent professional associates and consultants from all
claims, losses, damages of any kind or nature, judgments, and expenses
(including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney's fees and any costs),
arising out of or resulting therefrom. Any such verification and
adaptation will entitle Architect to further compensation at rate to be
agreed upon by Architect and Owner.

F. The specific schedule of services is more specifically described
in the letter part of this Agreement or an Exhibit thereto. The term of
this agreement commences upon the acceptance of this Agreement
(including all exhibits) by owner and terminates upon completion of the
services described in the letter part of this Agreement. Any delay in or
failure of performance of any party to this Agreement shall not constitute a
default under this Agreement nor give rise to any claim for damage, if and
to the extent such delay or failure is caused by occurrences or events
beyond the control of the party affected, including but not limited to, acts
of God; expropriation or confiscation of facilities or compliance with any
order or request of govemnment authority, affecting to a degree not
presently existing, the supply, availability, or use of personnel or

equipment; strikes; flood blizzard, labor unrest, riot; or any cause the
affected party is unable to prevent or foresee with reasonable diligence. A
party who is prevented from performing for any reason shall immediately
notify the other in writing of the reason for the nonperformance and the
anticipated extent of any delay and its efforts to minimize the extent of
delay and resume performance under this Agreement.

G. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Owner and
Architect (1) waive against each other, and the other’s employees,
officers, directors, agents, insurers, partners, and consultants, any
and all claims for or entitlement to special, incidental, indirect, or
consequential damages arising out of, resulting from, or in any way
related to the Project, and (2) agree that Architect’s (including
Architect’s employees, officers, directors, agents and insurers,
partners, and consultants) total liability to Owner under this
Agreement shall be limited to $50,000 or the total amount of
compensation received by Architect, whichever is greater. The
Owner may negotiate with the Architect in the event the Owner
wishes to change the total liability described herein but
acknowledges that any change may result in an additional fee, This
additional fee is in consideration of the greater risk involved in
performing work for which there is an increase or no limitation of
liability.

H. The parties acknowledge that Architect’s services include
services related to a Hazardous Environmental Condition (the presence
of asbestos, PCBs, petroleum, hazardous substances or waste, and
radioactive materials) only to the extent set forth in the scope of
services. If Architect or any other party encounters a Hazardous
Environmental Condition, Architect may, at its option and without
liability for consequential or any other damages, suspend performance of
services on the portion of the Project affected thereby until Owner: (i)
retains appropriate specialist consultants or contractors to, as
appropriate, abate, remediate, or remove the Hazardous Environmental
Condition; and (ii) warrants that the Site is in full compliance with
applicable Laws and Regulations.

9.01 Period of Service

A. The specific schedule of services is more specifically described
in the letter part of this Agreement or an exhibit thereto. The term of
this agreement commences upon the acceptance of this Agreement
(including all exhibits) by owner and terminates upon completion of the
services described in the letter part of this Agreement.

B. The provisions of this Section 9.01 and the various rates of
compensation for Architect's services provided for elsewhere in this
Agreement have been agreed to in anticipation of the orderly and
continuous progress of the Project through completion of the
Construction Phase. If execution of this Agreement and authorization to
proceed with the Bidding or Negotiating Phase is delayed beyond the
date and time frame established in the letter part of the agreement, or if
Architect's services are delayed or suspended for more than three (3)
months by Owner or for reasons beyond Architect's control, all rates,
measures and amounts of compensation provided herein shall be subject
to equitable adjustment.

C. If Owner has requested significant modifications or
changes in the general scope, extent or character of the Project, the time
of performance of Architect's services shall be adjusted equitably.

D. Any delay in or failure of performance of any party to this
Agreement shall not constitute a default under this Agreement nor give
rise to any claim for damage, if and to the extent such delay or failure is
caused by occurrences or events beyond the control of the party affected,
including but not limited to, acts of God; expropriation or confiscation
of facilities or compliance with any order or request of government
authority, affecting to a degree not presently existing, the supply,
availability, or use of personnel or equipment; strikes; flood blizzard,
labor unrest, riot; or any cause the affected party is unable to prevent or

Portions of this document have been taken from EJCDC E-520 Short Form Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services
Copyright© 2002 National Society for Professional Engineers for EYCDC. All rights reserved.



EXHIBIT “A”
TERMS & CONDITIONS (Design and Construction Phases)

foresee with reasonable diligence. A party who is prevented from
performing for any reason shall immediately notify the other in writing
of the reason for the nonperformance and the anticipated extent of any
delay and its efforts to minimize the extent of delay and resume
performance under this Agreement.

10.01 Opinions of Probable Cost

Since Architect has no control over the cost of labor, materials,
equipment or services fumished by others, or over the Contractor(s)'
methods of determining prices, or over competitive bidding or market
conditions, Architect's opinions of probable Total Project Costs and
Construction Cost provided for herein are to be made on the basis of
Architect's experience and qualifications and represent Architect's best
judgment as an experienced and qualified professional architect, familiar
with the construction industry; but Architect cannot and does not
guarantee that proposals, bids or actual Total Project or Construction
Costs will not vary from opinions of probable cost prepared by
Architect. If prior to the Bidding or Negotiating Phase Owner wishes
greater assurance as to Total Project or Construction Costs, Owner shall
employ an independent cost estimator.

11.01 Dispute Resolution

A. Owner and Architect agree to negotiate in good faith for a
period of thirty (30) days from the date of notice of disputes between
them as to the execution, meaning of, or performance under the terms of
this Agreement prior to exercising their right under paragraph 11.01(B)
below. The thirty-day period may be extended upon mutual agreement
of the parties.

B. If any dispute cannot be resolved pursuant to paragraph
11.01(A) and only if mutually agreed by Owner and Architect, said
dispute and all unsettled claims, counterclaims and other matters in
question between them arising out of or relating to the execution,
meaning of, or performance under the terms of this Agreement or the
breach thereof ("disputes) shall be submitted to mediation by a
mediator, to be selected by the parties jointly, prior to initiating a legal
action against the other, unless initiating mediation would irrevocably
prejudice one of the parties. It is the intention of the parties that any
agreement reached at mediation become binding upon them. The cost of
mediation shall be shared equally between the parties.

C. This Section 11.01 shall survive any termination or
cancellation of this Agreement.

12.01 Total Agreement/ Severability

This Agreement (consisting of the letter part of this Agreement,

Exhibit “A” and any additional exhibits referenced in the letter part

of this Agreement), constitutes the entire agreement between Owner

and Architect and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings.
This Agreement may only be amended, supplemented, modified,

or canceled by a duly executed written instrument. Any provision or
part of this Agreement held by a court of law to be invalid or
unenforceable under any law or regulation shall be deemed stricken, and
all remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and binding upon
Owner and Architect, who agree that the Agreement shall be reformed
to replace such stricken provision or part therefore with a valid and
enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the
intention of the stricken provision.

Portions of this document have been taken from EJCDC E-520 Short Form Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services
Copyright© 2002 National Society for Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.



